
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Melis Owen 
Service: Committee Services 
Direct line: 01784 446224 
E-mail: m.owen@spelthorne.gov.uk 
Date: 2 December 2022 

 
 

Notice of meeting 
 
 

Planning Committee  
 
 

Date: 

 

Wednesday, 14 December 2022 

Time: 

 

7.00 pm 

 

 

Place: 

 

Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames TW18 
1XB 

 
To the members of the Planning Committee 
 
Councillors: 
 
N.J. Gething (Chairman) 
M. Gibson (Vice-Chairman) 
R.O. Barratt 
C. Bateson 
M. Beecher 
 

A. Brar 
S. Buttar 
J. Button 
R. Chandler 
K. Howkins 
 

O. Rybinski 
R.W. Sider BEM 
B.B. Spoor 
J. Vinson 
S.J Whitmore 
 

Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available 
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the 
last Committee meeting.  
 

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 

Planning Committee meeting 

Start times of agenda items 

It is impossible to predict the start and finish time of any particular item on the agenda. It 
may happen on occasion that the Chairman will use his discretion to re-arrange the 
running order of the agenda, depending on the level of public interest on an item or the 
amount of public speaking that may need to take place.  This may mean that someone 
arranging to arrive later in order to only hear an item towards the middle or the end of the 
agenda, may miss that item altogether because it has been "brought forward" by the 
Chairman, or because the preceding items have been dealt with more speedily than 
anticipated.  Therefore, if you are anxious to make certain that you hear any particular item 
being debated by the Planning Committee, it is recommended that you arrange to attend 
from the start of the meeting.   
 
Background Papers 
For the purposes of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the following 
documents are to be regarded as standard background papers in relation to all items: 

 Letters of representation from third parties 

 Consultation replies from outside bodies 

 Letters or statements from or on behalf of the applicant 
 



 
 

 

 

 AGENDA  

  Page nos. 

1.   Apologies and Substitutions  

 To receive any apologies for non-attendance and notification of 
substitutions. 
 

 

2.   Minutes 5 - 10 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2022 as a 
correct record. 
 

 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from councillors under the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct, or contact with applicants/objectors under 
the Planning Code. 
 

 

 Planning Applications and other Development Control matters  

 To consider and determine the planning applications and other 
development control matters detailed in the reports listed below. 
 

 

4.   Planning application 22/00744/FUL - Land At Northumberland 
Close Bedfont Road, Stanwell 

11 - 52 

 Ward 
 
Stanwell North  
 
Proposal 
 
Erection of two industrial and storage buildings (flexible Use Class 
B2/B8) and associated site infrastructure, including landscaping, parking 
and a new access from Bedfont Road.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The application is recommended for refusal 
 

 

5.   Major Planning Applications 53 - 56 

 To note the details of future major planning applications. 
 

 

6.   Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Planning Committee 
19 October 2022 

 
 

Present: 
Councillor N.J. Gething (Chairman) 

Councillor M. Gibson (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors: 
 

R.O. Barratt 

C. Bateson 

M. Beecher 

 

S. Buttar 

R. Chandler 

K. Howkins 

 

R.W. Sider BEM 

B.B. Spoor 

J. Vinson 

 

 
 

Apologies: Apologies were received from  Councillor O. Rybinski and 
Councillor S.J Whitmore 

 
 
In Attendance: 
Councillors who are not members of the Committee, but attended the meeting 
and spoke on an application in or affecting their ward, are set out below in 
relation to the relevant application.  
 

  
 
 

53/22   Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 were approved as a 
correct record. 
 

54/22   Disclosures of Interest  
 

a) Disclosures of interest under the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 
There were none. 
 
b) Declarations of interest under the Council’s Planning Code 
 
Councillor Bateson and Councillor Vinson reported that they had received 
correspondence in relation to application 22/01017/FUL but had maintained 
an impartial role, had not expressed any views and had kept an open mind.  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
Planning Committee, 19 October 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

Councillor Beecher, Councillor Sider and Councillor Howkins reported they 
had visited the site.   
 
Councillor Mooney was attending as Ward Councillor and reported that she 
had received communications on application 22/01017/FUL and was speaking 
on behalf of residents. 
 

55/22   Planning application 22/01017/FUL - 31 Worple Road, Staines-
upon-Thames  
 

Description: 
Erection of a single storey rear infill extension and change of use of existing 
dwelling (C3) to 7 bedroom House of Multiple Occupancy (HMO) (Sui 
Generis) with shared kitchen and dining room, associated parking and 
amenity space. 
 
Additional Information: 
 

1. Update to Committee report: Paragraph 5.1 – The Council has 
received 8 10 letters of objection and 1 letter of representation. The two 
additional letters have been received from the same person that has 
already written in. 

2. Since the report has been written 4 more letters of objections have 
been received, most of the comments received are covered in the 
report. However, the following issues are not already covered in the 
report: 
- In terms of the issue relating to highway safety, the County 

Highways Authority has already considered the impact of the 
proposed development on the adjacent highway and raised no 
objection. 

- In terms of procedural queries we are satisfied all procedures have 
been followed. 

- With the comments made on National Design Guide the design of 
the single storey rear extension already has planning permission. 

- With comments made restricting future occupants to parking 
permits, the Council does not have a policy for this, and this is not 
considered to be reasonable or necessary for this scheme. 

- Equality Act has been considered in paragraph 6.22 in the Officers 
report 

 
Public Speaking:  
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, Tarun 
Sharma spoke against the proposed development raising the following key 
points: 
 

- A 7 person HMO was not permitted development in a residential 
area 

- The development would not be a positive contribution to the street 
scene or character of the area 

Page 6



 
Planning Committee, 19 October 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

- There had been incidents between the police and previous tenants 
on the property under the current owner’s management 

- There were not enough parking spaces for 7 occupants which could 
lead to road safety issues 

- Two trees in front of the property had been cut down 
- A large number of occupants would lead to an increase in noise and 

privacy concerns for neighbours 
- Removing a large family home from the housing market would 

contribute to the shortage of large family homes. 
- There are already a number of HMO’s in the area 

 
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, 
Councillor Chris Bateson spoke as Ward Councillor regarding his calling-in of 
the application raising the following key points: 
 

- The property had a turbulent history with a significant turnover of 
tenants 

- Incidents of anti-social behaviour and drugs had been 
commonplace on property 

- Neighbouring residents are unable to relax in their gardens due to 
noise and odours from the property 

- Approval would allow up to 13 people to reside at the address 
- Development would be out-of-keeping with surrounding residential 

environment 
- Parking would be an issue and would create safety issues on the 

road 
- Two trees had been cut down without a request 

 
In accordance with the Council’s procedure for speaking at meetings, 
Councillor Sinead Mooney spoke as Ward Councillor against the proposed 
development raising the following key points: 
 

- 39 residents had come together to sign a statement regarding their 
disapproval of the application 

- Proposal is over-development with potentially 13 people residing on 
the property 

- The living space is inadequate for the number of proposed 
residents 

- There would not be enough parking for the number of proposed 
residents 

- Proximity of the property to a junction and road safety features 
would create an issue entering and exiting the property 

- There had been a significant amount of local objection 
 
Debate: 
During the debate the following key issues were raised: 
 

- Anti-social behaviour was not a planning matter 
- Current planning policies and planning law supported the 

application 

Page 7



 
Planning Committee, 19 October 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

- The proposal could be approved as permitted development with six 
occupants 

- How the number of occupants could be monitored 
- Permission had already been given for the development of two flats 

on the site 
- Surrey County Council Highways had not objected on the grounds 

of parking 
- Increasing the number of residents on the property would increase 

the incidents of anti-social behaviour 
- Shared communal space was not sufficient for the number of 

proposed residents 
- There was not adequate public transport on Worple Road 
- Neighbours have a right to enjoy their homes and gardens 

peacefully 
- Both the personal and communal room sizes were small for the 

amount of occupants 
- Although permission would not be given for more than 7 individuals 

to occupy the property, it would be difficult to enforce 
- There had been an unlawful removal of trees on the property 
- There were 8 bathrooms presented in the property plans despite 

restrictions for 7 residents 
- Parking would have an impact on neighbouring properties 
- There would be a loss of privacy to neighbouring residents 
- A large number of people sharing such a small space may lead to 

trouble and mental health problems for the residents 
- Individuals have a right to peaceful existence 
- The bulkiness of the property would have an impact on the street 

scene 
- If residents on the property had regular visitors, there would be 

more people residing on the property although it would be 
technically limited to 7 individuals. 

- Visitors to the property may lead to anti-social behaviour 
- The extra bathroom was not a planning matter for consideration 
- There would be significant noise intrusion on neighbouring 

residents 
 
A recorded vote was requested by Councillors Barratt and Vinson. The 
Committee voted on this application as follows: 
 

For (1) N. Gething 

Against (10) R. Barratt, C. Bateson, M. Beecher, S. Buttar, R. Chandler, J. 
Doran, K. Howkins, R. W. Sider BEM, B. Spoor, J. Vinson 

Abstain (1) M. Gibson 

 
The motion to approve the application FELL. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 20:24.  
 
The meeting reconvened at 20:59. 
 

Page 8



 
Planning Committee, 19 October 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

It was proposed by Councillor R Barratt, seconded by Councillor Sider that the 
application be refused as the proposal failed to provide a high standard in the 
design and layout of the new development and therefore did not achieve a 
satisfactory relationship with neighbouring properties, and, by virtue of the 
number of proposed occupants, it would be an unneighbourly proposal 
resulting in an unacceptable level of activity, noise, and disturbance to the 
surrounding residential properties, contrary to policies EN1 and EN11 of the 
Spelthorne Core Strategy and Policies DPD, 2009. 
 
The voting was as follows: 
 
For: 12 
Against: 0 
Abstain: 0 
 
Decision: 
The application was refused for the following reasons: 
 
The proposal fails to provide a high standard in the design and layout of the 
new development and therefore does not achieve a satisfactory relationship 
with neighbouring properties, and, by virtue of the number of proposed 
occupants, it would be an unneighbourly proposal resulting in an 
unacceptable level of activity, noise and disturbance to surrounding residential 
properties, contrary to policies EN1 and EN11 of the Spelthorne Core 
Strategy and Policies DPD, 2009. 
 

56/22   Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022  
 

The Committee received a report from the Planning Development Manager 
and Principal Planning Officer on the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022. 
The Environment and Sustainability Committee had agreed the plan at their 
meeting in September.  
 
The Housing Delivery Test Action Plan arose from the Housing Delivery Test 
required by the government that assessed the authority’s housing delivery 
against the housing requirement. As Spelthorne scored 69%, an action plan 
was required. The report outlined central causes for under delivery, what the 
Council was currently doing to address the under delivery and further actions 
it could take going forward.   
 
The Committee confirmed that the pandemic had been included in the report 
as a reason for housing under delivery. 
 
The Committee resolved to note the Housing Delivery Test Action Plan 2022. 
 

57/22   Major Planning Applications  
 

Page 9



 
Planning Committee, 19 October 2022 - continued 

 

 
 

The Planning Development Manager submitted a report outlining major 
applications that may be brought before the Planning Committee for 
determination. 
 
Resolved that the report of the Planning Development Manager be received 
and noted. 
 

58/22   Planning Appeals Report  
 

The Chairman informed the Committee that if any Member had any detailed 
queries regarding the report on Appeals lodged and decisions received since 
the last meeting, they should contact the Planning Development Manager.  
 
Resolved that the report of the Planning Development Manager be received 
and noted. 
 

Page 10



3

1

4

11

19

BEDFONT ROAD

20
4

18
4

Cleveland Park

S
he

lte
r

House

22.9m

T
ra

ck

N
O

R
T

H
U

M
B

E
R

LA
N

D
 C

LO
S

E

ESS's

to

22
2

23
9

249

28
21

20
8

2

LB

El Sub Sta

FB

CF

1

22.9m

FB

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100024284. ¯Scale: 1:1,250

22/00744/FUL - Land at Northumberland Close, Bedfont Road, Stanwell. TW19 7LN

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



T
ra

ck

El Sub Sta

1

ESS's

S
h
e
lte

r

4

2
1

3
1

2

1
1

Lancaster

13

to

16

House

2
2
2

2128

19

20

FB

SITE SURFACING LEGEND

TARMACADAM ROAD AND/OR FOOTPATH

CONCRETE YARD SURFACING

BLOCK PAVED ROAD/PARKING AND FOOTPATH

LANDSCAPING

7
5

9
2

5
 m

m

88407 mm

LOCATION PLAN: NOTES:

REVISIONS

Do not scale this drawing

ashton smith to be notified of discrepancies in figured dimensions

Contractors must check all dimensions from site

This drawing is copyright and is for use on this site only

This drawing is to be used solely for information as entitled

For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross referenced drawing

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV DRAWN BY CHECK BY

CLIENT

JO
B

 N
O

.

Ashton Smith, Belvedere House, 2 Victoria Avenue, Harrogate, North Yorkshire, HG1 1EL

Tel: 01423 522882  Fax: 01423 565104

www.ashtonsmith.co.uk

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NO.

REVISION

STATUS DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

SCALE

RIBA STAGE

SHEET SUITABILITYDATE

A1

BIM MODEL NUMBER:

P6As indicated

RRJAPLANNING3

Northumberland Close, Heathrow

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT

S001/04/2022

2
2

0
2

3

22023 - ASA - 00 - VS.XX - D - A - 0004 _ (S0 - P6)
22023-ASA-ZZ-VS.ZZ-M3-A-0001_(S0-P1)

P1 01/04/2022 Initial Drawing Issue LN RR

P2 04/04/2022 Car parking to the south updated RAA RR

P3 05/04/2022 Redrawn and renumbered RAA RR

P4 12/04/2022 Redrawn RAA RR

P5 22/04/2022 Issued for Planning (incorporating updates) RAA RR

P6 04/05/2022 EV space numbers adjusted RAA RR

VISUAL SCALE 1:500

50m10m 40m30m20m0m

N
CYCLE SHELTER

16no SPACES

UNIT 2

UNIT 3

UNIT 1

10 parking spaces

10 parking spaces

40 parking spaces

26m turning circle

ramp to HGV docks

BIN STORE

CYCLE SHELTER
16no SPACES

dock doors level access doors

le
v
e

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 d

o
o

rs

Goods yard

Goods yard

Units 2 & 3 site 
entrance and exit

Unit 1 site 
entrance and exit

Unit 1 car park

Unit 3 car park

Unit 2 car park

le
v
e

l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 d

o
o

rs

N
O

R
T

H
U

M
B

E
R

L
A

N
D

 C
L

O
S

E

BEDFONT ROAD

C
L

A
R

E
 R

O
A

D

CLEVELAND PARK

A
P

P
R

O
X

IM
A

T
E

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 P

IP
E

L
IN

E
 A

N
D

 3
m

 E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

1 : 500

PROPOSED SITE PLAN
2

o
v
e
rs

p
il
l 
p

a
rk

in
g

MOTORCYCLE PARKING

SITE AREAS

APPLICATION SITE - 1.75h / 17,458m2 / 4.31a / 187,918ft2

SITE DENSITY 44% (UNITS 1, 2 & 3 GEA FOOTPRINT)

UNIT 1: GROSS EXTERNAL AREAS - GEA is measured to the outside face of the cladding
BUILDING (FOOTPRINT): 5764.724m² / 62,051.5ft² (GEA)
WAREHOUSE: 5276.402m² / 56,795.2ft² (GEA)
OFFICES (2 FLOORS, OFFICES & STAIRS): 976.644m² / 10,512.6ft² (GEA)
               GROUND FLOOR 488.322m² / 5,256.3ft² (GEA)     FIRST FLOOR 488.322m² / 5,256.3ft² (GEA)
TOTAL (EXCL. BUILDING FOOTPRINT): 6253.046m² / 67,307.8ft² (GEA)

UNIT 1: GROSS INTERNAL AREAS - GIA is measured to the inside face of the sheeting rails (assumed 
150mm wide) and includes spaces occupied by stairs, etc.
BUILDING (FOOTPRINT): 5652.604m² / 60,844.6ft² (GIA)
WAREHOUSE: 5184.584m² / 55,806.9ft² (GIA)
OFFICES (2 FLOORS, OFFICES & STAIRS): 905.854m² / 9,750.6ft² (GIA)
               GROUND FLOOR 452.927m² / 4,875.3ft² (GIA)      FIRST FLOOR 452.927m² / 4,875.3ft² (GIA)
TOTAL (EXCL. BUILDING FOOTPRINT): 6090.438m² / 68,557.5ft² (GIA)

UNIT 2: GROSS EXTERNAL AREAS
BUILDING (FOOTPRINT): 961.025m² / 10,344.5ft² (GEA)
WAREHOUSE: 920.119m² / 9,904.2ft² (GEA)
OFFICES (2 FLOORS, OFFICES & STAIRS): 209.037m² / 2,250.1ft² (GEA)
               GROUND FLOOR 40.905m² / 440.3ft² (GEA)     FIRST FLOOR 168.132m² / 1,809.8ft² (GEA)
TOTAL (EXCL. BUILDING FOOTPRINT): 1129.156m² / 12,154.2ft² (GEA)

UNIT 2: GROSS INTERNAL AREAS.
BUILDING (FOOTPRINT): 923.004m² / 9,935.2ft² (GIA)
WAREHOUSE: 886.651m² / 9,543.9ft² (GIA)
OFFICES (2 FLOORS, OFFICES & STAIRS): 180.036m² / 1,937.9ft² (GIA)
               GROUND FLOOR 36.054m² / 388.1ft² (GIA)      FIRST FLOOR 143.982m² / 1,549.8ft² (GIA)
TOTAL (EXCL. BUILDING FOOTPRINT): 1066.687m² / 11,481.8ft² (GIA)

UNIT 3: GROSS EXTERNAL AREAS
BUILDING (FOOTPRINT): 961.025m² / 10,344.5ft² (GEA)
WAREHOUSE: 920.119m² / 9,904.2ft² (GEA)
OFFICES (2 FLOORS, OFFICES & STAIRS): 209.037m² / 2,250.1ft² (GEA)
               GROUND FLOOR 40.905m² / 440.3ft² (GEA)     FIRST FLOOR 168.132m² / 1,809.8ft² (GEA)
TOTAL (EXCL. BUILDING FOOTPRINT): 1129.156m² / 12,154.2ft² (GEA)

UNIT 3: GROSS INTERNAL AREAS.
BUILDING (FOOTPRINT): 923.004m² / 9,935.2ft² (GIA)
WAREHOUSE: 886.651m² / 9,543.9ft² (GIA)
OFFICES (2 FLOORS, OFFICES & STAIRS): 180.036m² / 1,937.9ft² (GIA)
               GROUND FLOOR 36.054m² / 388.1ft² (GIA)      FIRST FLOOR 143.982m² / 1,549.8ft² (GIA)
TOTAL (EXCL. BUILDING FOOTPRINT): 1066.687m² / 11,481.8ft² (GIA)

PARKING SCHEDULE

48 CAR SPACES
4 DISABLED PARKING SPACES
8 EV CHARGING SPACES
         TOTAL 60 PARKING SPACES

10 MOTORCYCLE PARKING SPACES
32 CYCLE PARKING SPACES

P
age 13



V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

1-A1-M 1-F 1-E 1-D 1-C 1-B1-K 1-J 1-H 1-G1-L

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

1-1 1-131-51-41-31-2 1-6 1-7 1-8 1-9 1-10 1-11 1-12

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

1-A 1-M1-F1-E1-D1-C1-B 1-K1-J1-H1-G 1-L

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

1-11-13 1-5 1-4 1-3 1-21-61-71-81-91-101-111-12

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

1-A1-M 1-F 1-E 1-D 1-C 1-B1-K 1-J 1-H 1-G1-L

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.00_level

0 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.01_level

6000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

V1.02_level

15000 mm

1-11-13 1-5 1-4 1-3 1-21-61-71-81-91-101-111-12

A
P

P
R

O
X

 1
2

0
0

0
m

m

UNIT 1

B

A A

B

LOCATION PLAN: NOTES:

REVISIONS

CLIENT

JO
B

 N
O

.

Do not scale this drawing

ashton smith to be notified of discrepancies in figured dimensions

Contractors must check all dimensions from site

This drawing is copyright and is for use on this site only

This drawing is to be used solely for information as entitled

For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross referenced drawing

Ashton Smith, Belvedere House, 2 Victoria Avenue, Harrogate, North Yorkshire, HG1 1EL

Tel: 01423 522882  Fax: 01423 565104

www.ashtonsmith.co.uk

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV DRAWN BY CHECK BY

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NO.

REVISION

STATUS DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

SCALE

RIBA STAGE

SHEET SUITABILITYDATE

A0

BIM MODEL NUMBER:

P4As indicated

22023 - ASA - 00 - V1.ZZ - D - A - 0008 _ (S0 - P4)

RRJAPLANNING

Northumberland Close, Heathrow

UNIT 1 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS AND

SECTIONS

S001/04/2022

2
2

0
2

3

22023-ASA-ZZ-VS.ZZ-M3-A-0001_(S0-P1)

1 : 200

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION
3

1 : 200

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION
2

1 : 200

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION
1

1 : 200

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION
4

VISUAL SCALE 1:200

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

B A C B M C B

D B A D C B G J L G B B A C B M

B A C M B

P1 01/04/2022 Initial Drawing Issue LN RR

P2 05/04/2022 Redrawn and renumbered RAA RR

P3 12/04/2022 Redrawn RAA RR

P4 22/04/2022 Issued for Planning (incorporating updates) RAA RR

1 : 200

PROPOSED SECTION A
5

1 : 200

PROPOSED SECTION B
6

F K CM

HORIZONTALLY LAID METAL MICRORIB CLADDING PANEL COLOUR: DARK GREY (ARDENE RAL 7022)
HORIZONTALLY LAID METAL MICRORIB CLADDING PANEL COLOUR: GREY GREEN (RAL TBC)
METAL PROFILED WALL CLADDING SYSTEM COLOUR: LIGHT GREY (GOOSEWING GREY RAL 7038)
ALUMINIUM WINDOW / DOOR SYSTEM - MULLION DRAINED COLOUR: BLACK FRAME (RAL 9005) / GREY TINTED GLAZING AND GREY GREEN OBSCURE PANELS
GLAZED ENTRANCE CANOPY WITH STAINLESS STEEL SUPPORT FRAMING AND GREY GREEN ARCH
POWDER COATED ALUMINIUM WINDOW LOUVRE SYSTEM (RAL 7022)
HORIZONTALLY LAID TRANSLUCENT WALL CLADDING SYSTEM (KS1000WLWALL-LITE OR THE THERMA LIGHT CF40 POLYCARBONATE PANEL SYSTEMS OR 
SIMILAR APPROVED)
CONCRETE LOADING DOCK WALL, SELF FINISHED
DOCK SHELTER AND LOADING DOCK SYSTEM
LEVEL ACCESS, FOLDING SHUTTER DOORS
COLOUR MATCHED STEEL PERSONELL DOORS

A -
B -
C -
D -
E -
F -
G -
H -
J -
K -
L -
M -

P
age 14



V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

2-12-6 2-5 2-4 2-3 2-2

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

2-A2-L 2-F 2-E 2-D 2-C 2-B2-K 2-J 2-H 2-G

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

2-1 2-62-52-42-32-2

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

2-A 2-L2-F2-E2-D2-C2-B 2-K2-J2-H2-G

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

2-12-6 2-5 2-4 2-3 2-2

A
p

p
ro

x
 1

0
0

0
0

m
m

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.00_level

0 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.01_level

6500 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

V2.02_level

13000 mm

2-A 2-L2-F2-E2-D2-C2-B 2-K2-J2-H2-G

UNIT 2 UNIT 3A

B
B

A

LOCATION PLAN: NOTES:

REVISIONS

Do not scale this drawing

ashton smith to be notified of discrepancies in figured dimensions

Contractors must check all dimensions from site

This drawing is copyright and is for use on this site only

This drawing is to be used solely for information as entitled

For other information refer to the latest revision of any cross referenced drawing

DESCRIPTIONDATEREV DRAWN BY CHECK BY

CLIENT

JO
B

 N
O

.

Ashton Smith, Belvedere House, 2 Victoria Avenue, Harrogate, North Yorkshire, HG1 1EL

Tel: 01423 522882  Fax: 01423 565104

www.ashtonsmith.co.uk

PROJECT TITLE

DRAWING TITLE

DRAWING NO.

REVISION

STATUS DRAWN BY CHECKED BY

SCALE

RIBA STAGE

SHEET SUITABILITYDATE

A1

BIM MODEL NUMBER:

P4As indicated

RRJAPLANNING3

Northumberland Close, Heathrow

UNITS 2 & 3 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

AND SECTIONS

S001/04/2022

2
2

0
2

3

22023 - ASA - 00 - V2.ZZ - D - A - 0011 _ (S0 - P4)
22023-ASA-ZZ-VS.ZZ-M3-A-0001_(S0-P1)

P1 01/04/2022 Initial Drawing Issue LN RR

P2 05/04/2022 Redrawn and renumbered RAA RR

P3 12/04/2022 Redrawn RAA RR

P4 22/04/2022 Issued for Planning (incorporating updates) RAA RR

1 : 200

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION
4

1 : 200

PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION
3

1 : 200

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION
2

1 : 200

PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION
1

VISUAL SCALE 1:200

20m4m 16m12m8m0m

DB C A D G L BM

1 : 200

PROPOSED SECTION B
6

1 : 200

PROPOSED SECTION A
5

HORIZONTALLY LAID METAL MICRORIB CLADDING PANEL COLOUR: DARK GREY (ARDENE RAL 7022)
HORIZONTALLY LAID METAL MICRORIB CLADDING PANEL COLOUR: GREY GREEN (RAL TBC)
METAL PROFILED WALL CLADDING SYSTEM COLOUR: LIGHT GREY (GOOSEWING GREY RAL 7038)
ALUMINIUM WINDOW / DOOR SYSTEM - MULLION DRAINED COLOUR: BLACK FRAME (RAL 9005) / GREY TINTED GLAZING AND GREY GREEN OBSCURE PANELS
GLAZED ENTRANCE CANOPY WITH STAINLESS STEEL SUPPORT FRAMING AND GREY GREEN ARCH
POWDER COATED ALUMINIUM WINDOW LOUVRE SYSTEM (RAL 7022)
HORIZONTALLY LAID TRANSLUCENT WALL CLADDING SYSTEM (KS1000WLWALL-LITE OR THE THERMA LIGHT CF40 POLYCARBONATE PANEL SYSTEMS OR 
SIMILAR APPROVED)
CONCRETE LOADING DOCK WALL, SELF FINISHED
DOCK SHELTER AND LOADING DOCK SYSTEM
LEVEL ACCESS, FOLDING SHUTTER DOORS
COLOUR MATCHED STEEL PERSONELL DOORS

A -
B -
C -
D -
E -
F -
G -
H -
J -
K -
L -
M -

E BD ELD GC B BC A

B BC AB C A B BMCM

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
 

Planning Committee 

14 December 2022 

 
 

Application No. 22/00744/FUL 

Site Address Land At Northumberland Close Bedfont Road Stanwell TW19 7LN 

Applicant Valor Real Estate Partners LLP 

Proposal Erection of two industrial and storage buildings (flexible Use Class 
B2/B8) and associated site infrastructure, including landscaping, parking 
and a new access from Bedfont Road. 

Officers Paul Tomson/Vanya Popova 

Ward Stanwell North 

Call in details Cllr John Doran has requested this application to be reported to the 
Planning Committee for a decision if recommended for approval.  
 
Whilst the officer recommendation is for refusal, the site is proposed to 
be allocated within the new emerging Local Plan and in accordance with 
the Planning Committee’s Terms of Reference as set out in the 
Constitution, the Planning Development Manager has decided that, after 
consultation with the Chairman of the Planning Committee, this 
application should be submitted to the Planning Committee for 
determination. 

 

Application Dates 

Valid: 27.05.2022 Expiry: 26.08.2022 

Target: 

Extension of time 
agreed until 23.12.2022 

Executive 
Summary 

The site is located on the southern side of Bedfont Road, close to the 
northern part of the Borough and the southern boundary of Heathrow 
Airport. Northumberland Close extends southwards off Bedfont Road 
and provides access/egress to existing industrial units.  The eastern side 
(southern end of Northumberland Close) of the application land contains 
an existing gated vehicular access. The site is surrounded on two sides 
with residential development.  
 
The proposal involves the erection of two industrial and storage 
buildings (flexible Use Class B2/B8) together with associated parking, 
service yards, new access from Bedfont Road, and other associated 
development. The scheme will comprise three separate units: Unit 1 will 
be the largest building and will be located towards the southern part of 
the site. It will be accessed via Northumberland Close. Units 2 and 3 will 
be located within the building towards the northern part of the site. 
These units will be accessed from Bedfont Road. 
 

Page 17



 
 
 

The proposal is similar to the two previous planning applications for 
commercial development on the site (19/00956/FUL and 15/00698/FUL) 
that were refused for a number of reasons, including on Green Belt 
grounds. 
 
The site is located within the Green Belt and is mainly free of 
development. The proposal constitutes ‘inappropriate development’ in 
the Green Belt and will result in a very substantial loss of openness. 
Whilst the applicant has put forward some considerations in support of 
the scheme in the Planning Statement, these do not clearly outweigh the 
harm to the Green Belt, and other harm it will cause. Consequently, 
there are no ‘very special circumstances’ to justify the development in 
the Green Belt. 
 
In terms of ‘other harm’, the proposed buildings are considered to have 
an unacceptable overbearing impact on the amenity of neighbouring 
residential properties. The proposal is also considered to cause an 
unacceptable level of noise, disturbance and light pollution to 
neighbouring properties. 
 
In addition, the proposed buildings, in terms of their scale, location and 
design, are considered not to respect the character of the area, will be 
visually obtrusive, and will fail to make a positive contribution to the 
street scene. 
 
Moreover, the applicant has failed to demonstrate to the satisfaction of 
the Local Planning Authority that the proposed level of car parking is 
adequate to accommodate the demand generated by the proposal. This 
has the potential to result in parking taking place on the highway, which 
would have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, and parking 
stress in nearby roads to the detriment of the amenity of residential 
properties. 
 
It has not been demonstrated that the new access onto Bedfont Road 
will have sufficient visibility for vehicular traffic, which would have an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety. 
 
Furthermore, the applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposal 
will not have a harmful impact on air quality. 
 
The applicant has also failed to demonstrate the extent to which 
protected species on the site may be affected by the proposed 
development. It is not therefore possible to ascertain the full impact of 
the proposal on protected species. They have also failed to demonstrate 
that proposed development will provide a measurable net gain in 
biodiversity on the site.  
 

Recommended 
Decision 

The application is recommended for refusal. 

 

 

Page 18



 
 
 

 

 

MAIN REPORT 

 

1. Development Plan 
 

1.1 The following policies in the Council’s Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 
are considered relevant to this proposal: 

 

- SP1 (Location of Development) 

- LO1 (Flooding) 

- EM1 (Employment Development) 

- EM2 (Employment Development on Other Land) 

- EN3 (Air Quality) 

- EN8 (Protecting and Improving the Landscape and Biodiversity) 

- EN11 (Development and Noise) 

- EN13 (Light Pollution) 

- EN1 (Design of New Development) 

- EN15 (Development on Land Affected by Contamination) 

- SP7 (Climate Change and Transport) 

- CC1 (Renewable Energy, Energy Conservation and Sustainable 
Construction) 

- CC2 (Sustainable Travel) 

- CC3 (Parking Provision) 

 
1.2 It is also considered that the following Saved Local Plan policies are relevant 

to this proposal: 

- GB1 (Green Belt) 

- BE25 (Areas of High Archaeological Potential) 

 
1.3 Also relevant is the following Supplementary Planning Guidance: (SPG) 
 

- SPG on Parking Standards Updated 2011 
 
1.4 The policies contained within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

2021 is also relevant. 
 
1.5 On 19 May 2022, the Council agreed that the draft Spelthorne Local Plan 

2022 – 2037 be published for public consultation under Regulation 19 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended). The public consultation for the Pre-Submission Publication version 

Page 19



 
 
 

of the Local Plan ended on 21st September 2022 and the local plan was 
submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 25th November 2022. 

 

1.6 The following policies of the Pre-Submission Spelthorne Local Plan 2022 – 
2037 are of relevance: 
 

ST1: Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 
 

ST2: Planning for the Borough 
 

E2: Biodiversity 
 

E3: Managing Flood Risk 
 
E4: Environmental Protection 
 
EC1: Meeting Employment Needs 
 

                      PS1: Responding to the climate emergency 
 
                      PS2: Designing places and spaces 
                        

           SP4: Green Belt 
    
           SP7: Heathrow Airport 

 
                      ID1: Infrastructure and Delivery 

 
                      ID2: Sustainable Transport for New Developments 

 

 
1.7 It is relevant to note that the site was originally included within the Spelthorne 

Local Plan Preferred Options Consultation (Site Allocations) at the Regulation 
18 stage as a potential allocation for 2000 sq. metres of commercial 
development. However, this has now been superseded by the latest Pre-
Submission Local Plan where the site is allocated for housing. This previous 
commercial allocation carries no weight in decision making. 

 
1.8 The Council’s Emerging Plan now identifies the site for allocation for 

Residential (C3): approximately 80 units (SN1/005 – Land at Northumberland 
Close). There was no change the proposed site allocation when the Pre-
Submission Local Plan was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 
25/11/22. 
 

1.9 A total of 3 representations, including 1 from the Environment Agency, have 
been received in relation to the site allocation in the emerging local plan. 
Issues raised include: 
 

• Inconsistencies in the Council’s assessment of individual sites. Another 
site in Sunbury was comparable, if not better suited, for housing but 
was rejected as an allocation. 
 

Page 20



 
 
 

• The site lends itself to a commercial use. Allocating it for housing is 
short-sighted when a commercial use is more appropriate for the longer 
term strategic economic interests of Spelthorne Borough. If allocated 
for commercial use, it would be an obvious extension to the existing 
Blackburn Trading Estate. 

 

• General flooding advice from the Environment Agency. 
1.10 In addition 30 representations were received from 10 individuals and 

organisations on policy EC1: Meeting Employment Needs.  Several of these 
objected to the lack of provision of employment land. 
 

2 Relevant Planning History 
 

2.1 The application land is subject to some recent planning history with planning 
applications submitted in 2014, 2015 and 2019 for similar commercial 
proposals.  
 

Ref. No. Proposal Decision 
and Date 

19/00956/FUL Erection of a building comprising 8,241 
square metres to provide warehousing 
and distribution/logistics (Class B8) and 
associated offices together with 
associated access, loading/uploading, 
car-parking, servicing and landscaping. 

Refused 
18.09.2019 

15/00698/FUL Erection of a Class B1(Business) building 
with associated parking and landscaping, 
and construction of access onto 
Northumberland Close, together with 
dedication of land fronting Bedfont Road 
as Public Open Space. 

Refused 
04.08.2015 

Appeal 
Withdrawn 
14.07.2016 

14/00511/FUL Erection of a Class B1(Business) building 
with associated parking and landscaping, 
and construction of access onto 
Northumberland Close, together with 
dedication of land fronting Bedfont Road 
as Public Open Space. 

Withdrawn 
08.07.2014 

95/00612/OUT Erection of 17no one bedroom flats, 28 
two bedroom flats, 36 three bedroom 
houses, car parking, access roads, public 
walks, & open space. 

Refused 
27.03.1995 

SP/FUL/90/346 Erection of 1,692 sq. m (18,212 sq ft) of 
Class B8 storage and distribution 
warehousing with ancillary office 
accommodation, and provision of car and 
lorry parking. 

Approved 
19.09.1990 

 
2.2 With regard to planning application 19/00956/FUL, this was considered at the 

Planning Committee on 18 September 2019 and was refused (as per Planning 
Officer’s recommendation) on several grounds including:- 

Page 21



 
 
 

• Inappropriate development in the Green Belt and significant loss of 
openness  

• Unacceptable overbearing impact on the nearby residential properties 
due the proposed building of its height, bulk and massing and positioning   

• Unacceptable levels of noise and general disturbance associated with 
the proposal 

• Inadequate level of parking provision within the site and impacting the 
on-street parking within the vicinity 

• The proposed development leading to a significant increase in HGV 
movements over an access which was unsuitable geometry to 
accommodate the safe passage of that volume of HGVs. Consequently, 
raised concerns on the highway safety to all users 
 

2.3 With regard to planning application 15/00698/FUL, this was refused for the 
following reasons: 

 

• Inappropriate development in the Green Belt and significant loss of 
openness  

• Unacceptable overbearing impact on the nearby residential properties 
due the proposed building of its height, bulk and massing and positioning   

• Failed to demonstrate that the proposal with B1 use would be compatible 
with the surrounding highway infrastructure 

• Unsatisfactory pedestrian access due to its proximity to the petrol filling 
station and access way existing onto one its vehicular access points 

• Failed to demonstrate satisfactory impact upon the habitat and 
biodiversity of the site including in respect of any bats, badgers and 
hedgehogs which may present or use the site 

 
 

3 Description of Current Proposal 
 
           Location and Description of Site 
 
3.1 The application site comprises 1.75 hectares and relates to an open and 

undeveloped area of land which is predominately covered with overgrown 
grass with trees and shrubs around. The site is located on the southern side 
of Bedfont Road, close to the northern part of the Borough and the southern 
boundary of Heathrow Airport. Northumberland Close extends southwards off 
Bedfont Road and provides access/egress to existing industrial units, some of 
which are airport related businesses such as baggage handling and freight 
firms. The eastern side (southern end of Northumberland Close) of the 
application land contains an existing gated vehicular access. The site is 
surrounded on two sides with residential development. To the north-east 
boundary of the site are a number of existing two storey terraced dwellings 
within a cul-de-sac named Cleveland Park. Further residential properties in 
the form of two storey semi-detached buildings (dwellings and flats) are 
situated within Clare Road. The rear gardens of these residential properties 
back onto the western boundary of the application site. A Petrol Station is 
located to the north west of the site.  Further to the south (beyond an adjacent 
area of open land) is Stanwell Fields C of E Primary School. 

Page 22



 
 
 

 
3.2 The application site is located within the designated Green Belt.  A small part 

on the western side of the site (east of Clare Road) is within an Area of High 
Archaeological Potential (ref. 6012 a10)  and this relates to rectangular 
enclosures and ring ditches (The County Archaeologist states that these are 
particularly related to, but not limited to, Roman remains). The site is not 
located within an area with high risk flood zone (Flood Zone 1). The Duke of 
Northumberland’s River is to the north, on the other side of Bedfont Road, 
approximately 25 metres away. To the east of the site, the land is designated 
as an Employment Area (Northumberland Close & Long Lane, Stanwell 
Employment Area.  

 
Proposal 

 
3.3 The proposal comprises the erection of two industrial and storage buildings  

(flexible Use Classes of B2 ‘Industrial and Manufacturing’ and B8 ‘Storage 
and Distribution’) with ancillary offices and associated site infrastructure 
including landscaping, parking and new access onto Bedfont Road. The total 
gross external floorspace (GEA) (including ancillary office space) comprises 
8,511sq metres. The applicant seeks 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 
operation flexibility within the entire site to allow opportunities for traffic 
associated with the development to be spread outside of peak hours. 
 

3.4 The scheme proposes a large area of hardstanding with vehicle accesses via 
Northumberland Close and Bedfont Road. The supporting information 
indicates there will be two buildings separated by a 2.7 metres gap) which are 
divided into 3 units. Unit 1 is orientated towards the south.  It is detached from 
the other units and will measure 62.1 metres long by 90.5 metres wide. It will 
be the largest unit within the site comprising 5,622sq metres external footprint 
(without including first floor ancillary offices). The vehicular entrance is via 
Northumberland Close and there is a service yard for loading and unloading 
activities from the HGV lorries where 6 loading docks are planned. The 
proposed layout plan indicates that the unit would provide 40 car parking 
spaces (main and overspill parking areas) both of which are located near the 
western boundary. The maximum height of this structure is shown to be 15 
metres.  
 

3.5 Units 2 and 3 are located within the other building with an orientation towards 
the north (facing onto Bedfont Road) with a goods yard for larger vehicles 
located towards the west (towards the rear private gardens of the Clare Road 
residential properties.). The external footprint of the building containing the 
two units will be 1,833sq metres in total (26.575 metres by 68.95 metres) 
whilst the maximum height of the building will be 13 metres. The subject 
structure would provide 20 parking spaces (10 parking spaces allocated for 
each unit). The proposed plans show no allocated lorry parking spaces within 
the site, although clearly there is scope for lorries to park/load/unload within 
the designated goods yard. 

 
3.6 The illustration below outlines the layout of the site and the location of Unit 1,2 

and 3. Full copies of the proposed site layout and elevations are provided as 
an Appendix. 

 

Page 23



 
 
 

 

  
 
4 Consultations 

 
4.1 The following table shows those bodies consulted and their response. 
 

Consultee Comment 

County Highway Authority 
The County Highway Authority raises two 
objections in relation highways safety and 
insufficient car parking. 

Environment Agency No objections, refers to the standard advice.  

Sustainability Officer 

Originally raised concerns in regarding to the 
given renewable energy generation. After re-
consultation, the Sustainability Officer is 
satisfied with amended information.  

Local Lead Flood 
Authority (Surrey County 
Council) 

No objections, recommends condition and 
informative.  

County Archaeologist No objection, recommends a condition.  

National Highways  

Has raised number of queries regarding the 
Transport Assessment and formally 
requested that the Council refrained from 
determining the application until further 
information is provided. After re-consultation, 
the National Highways has raised no 
objection to the proposal in terms of the 
impact to the strategic road network (SRN). A 
condition has been recommended for the 
submission of Construction Traffic 

Page 24



 
 
 

Management Plan.  

Heathrow Airport 
Safeguarding (CAA) 

No objection, recommends informative 

Natural England No objection. 

Surrey Wildlife Trust 

Considers that insufficient ecological survey 
information has been provided on whether the 
proposal would likely to cause an adverse 
effect on the legally protected species. 
Insufficient information has also been 
provided to demonstrate a biodiversity net 
gain on the site. 

Tree Officer 

Has raised concerns on the limited level of 
new tree planting.  Also comments that the 
use of green walls should be considered for 
softening the building. 

Thames Water No objection, recommends informatives. 

National Grid No objection. 

Germans (Oil Pipelines) 
No objection, recommends an informative to 
be added to any permission.  

Environmental Health 
(noise) 

Raises an objection regarding noise impact 
that the development would have on the 
nearby residential properties. No mitigations 
have been proposed.  
 

Environmental Health 
(Contaminated land) 

No objection, recommends conditions and 
informatives. 

Environmental Health  

(Air Quality) 

Raises an objection on air quality grounds 
due to increase in HGVs and other vehicles in 
relation to the proposed development and 
consequent impact this will have on the air 
quality in the area.  

Crime Prevention Officer 
No objection, recommends an informative. 

London Borough of 
Hounslow 

No objection. 

London Borough of 
Hillingdon 

No comments have been received.  

British Pipeline Agency 
(BPA) 

No comments have been received.  

Environmental Health 
(lighting) 

Raises an objection regarding of light 
intrusion to nearby residential properties from 
this development based on the information 
contained within the report. 

 

Page 25



 
 
 

 
5.   Public Consultation 
 
 Planning Application - Consulting the Neighbours 
 
5.1 Following receipt of the planning application, 79 properties were notified of the 

planning application.  Furthermore, statutory site notices were displayed and 
the application was advertised in the local press.  A total of 26 letters of 
representation were received objecting to the application.  

 
5.2 The Council has also received a letter of objection from a planning consultant 

submitted on behalf of the Airport Industrial Property Unit Trust (‘AIPUT’) 
which owns the air cargo warehouse and logistics premises located to the 
east of Northumberland Close including Cargo Point and Dnata City. As part 
of the objection, a technical assessment of the highways impacts was 
submitted by a Transport Consultant raising a number of highway concerns. 

 
5.3 Reasons for objecting include: - 
 

➢ three similar proposals, two of which were previously refused 
➢ all previous reasons for refusal are still valid for this application 
➢ highway safety implications 
➢ increased volume of vehicular activity  
➢ there is already HGV pressure from the nearby industrial units 
➢ access and egress arrangement issues 
➢ lack of parking provision  
➢ increased stress within the on-street parking 
➢ proposed use  
➢ proposed hours of operation  
➢ health and wellbeing 
➢ noise and disturbance to the nearby residential properties 
➢ light pollution 
➢ overshadowing 
➢ over-bearing 
➢ enclosed feeling 
➢ loss of privacy 
➢ building size 
➢ loss of light 
➢ loss of view 
➢ impact on the public realm 
➢ air quality pollution 
➢ impact on the wildlife habitats within the land 
➢ this land should be proposed for housing 
➢ loss of Green Belt land 
➢ over-looking 
➢ already busy road 
➢ the proposal is closer to the residential properties than the previously 

proposed 
➢ there is demand for affordable housing 
➢ no very special circumstances have been demonstrated 
➢ design and location 
➢ visual impact 

Page 26



 
 
 

➢ inadequate local infrastructure 
➢ nearby gas pipeline 
➢ increased accidents 
➢ effect on the enjoyment within the private gardens 
➢ over-dominant  
➢ health and safety 
➢ increased density 
➢ appearance 
➢ flooding 
➢ sustainability 
➢ mass, bulk and height similar to the recently refused scheme 
➢ misleading information as the site has been identified for potential 

allocation for residential scheme rather commercial use within the new 
Draft Local Plan 

 
 
6. Planning Issues 

  

• Green Belt 

• Design and appearance 

• Impact on neighbouring properties 

• Highway issues/ parking 

• Noise and disturbance  

• Air Quality 

• Flooding 

• Biodiversity  

• Renewable Energy  

• External Lighting  
 
 
7. Planning Considerations 

Background 

7.1 As referred above, similar proposals were refused planning permission in 
2019 and 2015 for several reasons. In terms of the size of the development, 
separation distances and the nature of the use, the table (Table 1) below 
gives comparison between the three schemes:- 

 

 2015 Refused 
Scheme 

2019 Refused 
Scheme 

Current 
Proposal 

Footprint 6324sq metres 6921sq metres 7455sq metres 

Floorspace 
(GIA) 

7191sq metres 8241sq metres 8222sq metres 

Maximum 
Height 

10.4 metres 16.19 metres Unit 1- 15 metres 
tall 

Unit 2 & 3- 13 
metres tall 

Height to the 8 metres 14 metres Unit 1- 15 metres 

Page 27



 
 
 

eaves (flat roof) 

Unit 2 & 3- 13 
metres (flat roof) 

Distance from 
building to 
boundary 

Cleveland Park-
10 metres 

 

 

 

Clare Road-14 
metres 

Cleveland 
Park- 17.9 

metres from the 
Office structure, 

4-7.5 metres 
from the 

proposed green 
wall 

Clare Road-21 
metres 

Cleveland Park- 
Unit 2 and 3- 10.3 

metres 

Unit 1- 2.8 metres 

 

Clare Road Units 
1 & 2- 32 metres 

Unit 1- between 
23 and 28 metres 

Length 136.5 metres 165 metres 131.05 metres 
(with 2.7 metres 
separation with 
both buildings) 

Use B1- with facilities 
for alterative B8 
use if required in 

the future 

B8- cargo 
warehouse with 

ancillary B1 
offices 

Flexible Use 
Classes of B2 
‘Industrial and 
Manufacturing’ 

and B8 ‘Storage 
and Distribution’ 

with ancillary 
offices 

Hours of 
Operation 

12 hours a day 
from 7:30am 

24/7 operation 24/7 operation 

Proposed 
parking 

84 car-parking 
spaces, 16 lorry 

bay parking 
spaces with 36 
bicycle spaces 

58 car-parking 
spaces, 50 bike 
spaces and 10 

spaces 
designated for 
lorry parking 

bays 

Overall- 60 car-
parking and 32 
cycle spaces 

(Unit 1- 40 car 
parking spaces 

and 16 cycle 
spaces 

Unit 2- 10 car 
parking spaces 

and 8 cycle 
spaces 

Unit 3- 10 car 
parking spaces 

and 8 cycle 
spaces) 

Table 1: Comparison between the previously refused schemes and the current proposal 

 

 
 

Page 28



 
 
 

 
Green Belt 
 

7.2 The site lies within the Green Belt. Section 13 of the NPPF sets out the 
Government's policy with regard to protecting Green Belt land. It states that 
the Government attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental 
aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land 
permanently open; the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their 
openness and their permanence. The policy is similarly reflected in the 
Council's Saved Local Plan Policy GB1. 

 
7.3 Paragraph 138 of the NPPF 2021 sets out the five purposes of the Green 

Belt:- 

• To check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up area; 

• To prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another; 

• To assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment; 

• To preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and  

• To assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of 
derelict and other urban land.  
 

7.4 The Council’s Local Plan Policy GB1 was saved from the 2001 Local Plan and 
therefore pre-dates the current NPPF. However, in accordance with 
paragraph 219 of the NPPF, Policy GB1 is broadly consistent with the Green 
Belt policy within the NPPF and is afforded a significant weight. Policy GB1 
does not allow for any development unless it is one of a number of acceptable 
uses set out in the policy and also maintains the openness of the Green Belt. 
This differs from the more recent and more up to date national policy which 
allows exceptions to this when the identified harm to the Green Belt is clearly 
outweighed by other considerations that constitute very special 
circumstances.  The site is presently unallocated and is within the Green Belt 
in the adopted local plan, and therefore should be considered within this 
context. Indeed, s38(6) the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
requires applications to be determined in accordance with the development 
plan (unless material considerations indicate otherwise) and not in 
accordance with an emerging plan, although emerging policies may be a 
material consideration. 
 

7.5 With regards to the current and future extent of the Green Belt, paragraphs 
140-141 of the NPPF stipulate that once Green Belt boundaries have been 
established they should only be altered where exceptional circumstances are 
fully evidenced and justified, through the preparation or updating of plans. As 
part of the preparation of a new Local Plan, Ove Arup & Partners Ltd (Arup) 
were appointed by Spelthorne Borough Council in 2017 to undertake a Stage 
1 Green Belt Assessment (GBA) to assess and confirm whether the 
Spelthorne Green Belt meets the purposes as defined in the NPPF. The 
NPPF was revised in 2021 but the GBA is still considered relevant. The GBA 
does not, in itself, determine whether Green Belt land should be released or 
explore the potential suitability of areas of Green Belt for development, 
however, it does provide evidence of the performance of the Green Belt 
against the five purposes above and recommends areas that would warrant 

Page 29



 
 
 

further consideration by the Council as part of the process of preparing a new 
local plan.  
 

7.6 The GBA identified two tiers of land parcels: Strategic Green Belt Areas 
(‘Strategic Areas’) and Local Green Belt Areas (‘Local Areas’). The 
assessment divided Spelthorne into two strategic areas. The application site 
lies within ‘Strategic Area B’ which is described in paragraph 4.3.1 of the GBA 
as “a band of Green Belt maintaining separation between a number of 
settlements including Ashford / Sunbury-on-Thames / Stanwell, Staines-upon-
Thames / Shepperton / Walton-on-Thames, and Chertsey, Addlestone, and 
Egham.” In its conclusion (section 7), the assessment affirms that this area 
“plays an important role in meeting the fundamental aim of the Green Belt 
through preventing sprawl from settlements in Surrey by keeping land 
permanently open”.   

 
7.7 The GBA then divided the Green Belt into smaller parcels with defining 

features such as motorways, A and B roads, railway lines, rivers, brooks and 
reservoirs as their boundaries for the purpose of the assessment, however it 
is important to note that the Green Belt is often perceived as a much larger or 
continuous area. The application site is outlined in red and is situated within 
Local Area 5 shown in Figure 1.  

 

 

Figure 1: Extract from 'Map 5.5 Overall Assessment Scores' from Spelthorne Green Belt 
Assessment by ARUP (2018). Application site added in red.  

7.8 In the assessment, Local Area 5 was identified as a weakly performing 
against the Green Belt purposes.  The GBA does not on its own decide if a 
piece of land is to be retained or removed from the Green Belt, as this can 
only be done through the Local Plan process.  The current programme for the 
new local plan anticipates that the adoption will in September 2023.  

 
7.9 The NPPF policy states at para 48 that….. 

 
Local planning authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging 
plans according to: 

Page 30



 
 
 

 a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its 
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);  
b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the 
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be 
given); and 
 c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to 
this Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in 
the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given). 
 

7.10 The Pre-Submission Local Plan Regulation 19 was submitted to the Planning 
Inspectorate on 25th November 2022.  The date of the examination has not 
been set but is expected to be in the Spring 2023. The emerging policies are a 
material consideration in the determination of the application. The site is 
allocated for housing in this emerging plan.  In terms of the proposed 
allocation of the site (for residential purposes, not classes B2 and B8 as 
proposed under this application), given the key objectives of the NPPF is to 
boost the supply of housing, it is considered that the emerging policy which 
allocates the site for housing is consistent with that part of the NPPF. The 
Council has received three representations in relation to this allocation. With 
reference to para 48 of the NPPF, the new local plan is not yet at an 
advanced stage of preparation (a), and there are unresolved objections (b). In 
view of this, it is concluded that in this particular case, the emerging policies 
can only be given limited weight in development management decision 
making. As a consequence, given the requirement under s 38(6) of the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, it is considered that the 
adopted Green Belt status carries substantial weight in the determination of 
this application. Any application on Green Belt land must be assessed against 
national and local Green Belt policy including the five purposes of the Green 
Belt, and whether the development is appropriate or inappropriate within the 
Green Belt. This is considered in the paragraphs below. 
 

7.11 It is relevant to note that the reason for the change in the Local Plan site 
allocation from employment to residential was because the Council no longer 
considered there was exceptional circumstances to exist or realise to meet 
development need for employment land with the previous Heathrow Airport 
expansion plans now paused. However, the Council does have exceptional 
circumstances for meeting housing needs in the Borough. 

 
         Inappropriate Development  

7.12  The site is currently free of development and is laid with vegetation. The 
proposal involves the erection of two industrial/storage buildings, associated 
roadways, parking areas, service yards and other associated development.  
The proposed development would not fit into any of the limited ‘exceptions’ to 
inappropriate development listed in paragraphs 149 or 150 of the NPPF. The 
proposal therefore constitutes ‘inappropriate development’ in the Green Belt. 

 
7.13 The NPPF states that “Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to 

the Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special 
circumstances.” “When considering any planning application, local planning 
authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the 
Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances' will not exist unless the potential 

Page 31



 
 
 

harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm 
resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations."  

 
Green Belt Openness 

 
7.14 The NPPF 2021 still requires there to be an assessment of the impact on the 

openness of the Green Belt and the purposes of including land within it. The 
essential characteristics of Green Belt land is its openness and its 
permanence. These characteristics serve all five purposes of the Green Belt 
(defined in section 7.3 above) against which the proposed development will 
be assessed. 

 
7.15 The courts have considered the correct approach to openness, notably in 

Turner v SSCLG [2016] EWCA Civ 466 and R (on the application of Samuel 
Smith Old Brewery and others) v North Yorkshire County Council [2020] 
UKSC3. The courts have made clear that openness is open-textured and a 
number of factors are capable of being relevant when it comes to the facts of 
a specific case. The matters relevant to openness in any particular case are a 
matter of planning judgment. Relevant factors may include both visual and 
spatial considerations. These are examined within the following paragraphs.  

 
7.16 The existing site is free of development and is laid with trees and other 

vegetation. The proposed development will lead to almost all of the site being 
built upon creating a very substantial loss of openness which will result in 
spatial harm. Very little of the remaining site will be laid with landscaping. Unit 
1 will measure 91 metres in width, 62 metres in length and up to 15 metres in 
height. It will extend across most of the width of the overall site. The building 
comprising Units 2 and 3 will measure 27 metres in width, 70 metres in depth 
and up to 13 metres in height. It will cover a large part of the northern area of 
the site. The proposed service yards, parking areas and roadways, together 
with the associated goods and vehicles using them will also cause a harmful 
loss of openness.  

 
7.17 The loss of openness of the Green Belt in visual terms will also be very 

substantial. Viewed from Bedfont Road, the northern boundary is currently 
lined with existing trees, hedging and a grass highway verge, and has a semi-
rural appearance. The proposal will result in the removal of part of the existing 
vegetation and will replace the road frontage with the 13 metre-high building 
accommodating Units 2 and 3, together with the new access, parking area 
and service yard. All of these elements (plus the parked vehicles and goods) 
will be clearly visible from Bedfont Road. Moreover, the site viewed from 
Northumberland Close and Cleveland Park is currently open laid with trees 
and other vegetation. Indeed, the boundary between the site and Cleveland 
Park has the appearance of being at the edge of the urban area with the 
application site having a contrasting semi-rural appearance. Replacing this 
open appearance with the proposed buildings situated close the boundaries of 
the site and rising up to 15 metres in height, will result in a very substantial 
loss of openness visually. The service yard and other associated development 
serving Unit 1 will also be situated close to Northumberland Close and will be 
visually harmful to the openness of the Green Belt. 
 

Page 32



 
 
 

7.18 Taking into account the amount of development proposed, it is considered 
that the existing openness of the Green Belt will be very substantially harmed 
both visually and spatially. The essential character of the Green Belt is its 
openness. The development of the site as proposed will fundamentally 
change the characteristics of this site away from open to intensely developed. 
The loss of openness weighs heavily against the merits of the scheme. This is 
in addition to the substantial harm caused by the inappropriateness of the 
development. 

 
Assessment of Harm 

 
7.19 As quoted above, paragraph 138 of the NPPF sets out that the Green Belt 

serves five purposes against which proposed development within the Green 
Belt should be assessed. 

 
7.20 The proposed development is considered to create unrestricted urban sprawl 

conflicting with the first of the five purposes set out in paragraph 138 of the 
NPPF. The site is at the edge of the large built-up area of 
Ashford/Sunbury/Stanwell. There is currently a clear boundary between the 
residential area of Stanwell marked by the end of the rear gardens of the 
dwellings in Clare Road, and the existing industrial area to the south and east 
of the application site. Whilst it is recognised that the site is largely enclosed 
by existing built development and has very limited connections to the wider 
Green Belt, the proposed development will erode this boundary and create 
urban sprawl.  

 
7.21 Moreover, the proposed development will be erected on land currently free of 

development and is considered to cause encroachment into the countryside. 
Whilst the site is largely surrounded by built form and is not clearly connected 
to the wider countryside, when viewed from the urban area edges of Clare 
Road and Cleveland Park the site does have a semi-rural appearance and the 
proposed development will lead to encroachment of the countryside.  It 
therefore fails to comply with the third of the five purposes of the Green Belt 
(‘to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment’).  

 
7.22 The NPPF states the inappropriate development should not be approved 

except in 'very special circumstances', which would not exist unless the 
potential harm to the Green Belt and any other harm is clearly outweighed by 
other considerations. The applicant has put forward some considerations in 
their Planning Statement, which they consider justifies the development in the 
Green Belt. These considerations are summarised towards the end of this 
report under the Section ‘Other Considerations’.  

 
Design and appearance 
 

7.23 Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 
(CS&P DPD) states that the Council will require a high standard of design and 
layout of new development. Proposals for new development should 
demonstrate that they will create buildings and places that are attractive with 
their own distinct identity; they should respect and make a positive 
contribution to the street scene and the character of the area in which they are 
situated, paying due regard to the scale, height, proportions, building lines 

Page 33



 
 
 

layout, materials and other characteristics of adjoining buildings and land and 
achieving a satisfactory relationship to adjoining properties.   

 
7.24 Section 12 of the NPPF: Achieving well-designed places, refers to design and 

in particular that the creation of high quality buildings and places is 
fundamental to what the planning and development process should achieve. It 
states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates 
better places in which to live and work and helps make development 
acceptable to communities.  

 
7.25 It states in paragraph 130 that: 

‘Planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments:- 
 

a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the 
short term but over the lifetime of the development; 

 
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 

appropriate and effective landscaping;  
 
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding 

built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or 
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased 
densities);  

 
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of 

streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, 
welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit;  

 
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an 

appropriate amount and mix of development (including green and other 
public space) and support local facilities and transport networks; and  

 
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote 

health and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users46; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do 
not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.’ 

 
7.26 Paragraph 134 of the NPPF states that development that is not well designed 

should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and 
government guidance on design, taking into account any local design 
guidance and supplementary planning documents such as design guides and 
codes.  
 

7.27 The surrounding area comprises a mixture of building types including 
residential two storey buildings (to the north-east and west of the site), 
existing industrial units along Northumberland Close containing buildings of 
varying heights. The proposal would have a similar appearance in terms of 
scale and style in terms of external materials and design to the nearest 
existing industrial units located within Northumberland Close. Furthermore, 
the proposed appearance is of typical industrial buildings. However, it is 
relevant to note that the existing warehouse development is well set back from 
the highway which gives a degree of open separation between the main 

Page 34



 
 
 

buildings and the boundaries. Furthermore, they are fronted with trees which 
gives more sense of place. The proposed plans indicate that the two buildings 
would extend beyond the building line of the nearby residential properties’ rear 
elevations of Cleveland Park to the north and east. Given the proposed height 
and size, the development would appear as noticeably dominant and 
overbearing when viewed in the context from the street scene of 
Northumberland Close and Bedfont Road in each direction. The close 
proximity to the northern and eastern boundaries would not pay regard to the 
degree of spaciousness between and around the nearby buildings. 
Furthermore, due to the minimal separation between the proposed two 
buildings the development would have the appearance as one continuance 
structure extending along the site from north to south (131.05 metres long). 
Although some space for landscaping is proposed, it would not be extensive 
around the site. As a result, when seen from the Bedfont Road and 
Northumberland Close, the proposal would appear as dominant. It is also 
relevant to note the Council’s Tree Officer raised concerns on the level of 
planting area adjacent with Cleveland Park and to the level of new tree 
planting along the western boundary.   
 

7.28 Moreover, paragraph 174(b) of the NPPF explains that planning policies and 
decision should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment 
by recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. The 
existing site is open and undeveloped which has a semi-rural character 
comprising trees and hedging along the Bedfont frontage. Within the site the 
grassland and other vegetation has a pleasant character. Replacing this land  
with the proposed development will result in the loss of this part of the 
countryside. 
 

7.29 Whilst it has been noted that the Council did not object on design and 
appearance within the previously refused scheme, the current layout however 
is materially different and has substantially worse impact on the character and 
appearance within the surrounding area. The proposed building back in 2019 
was set in from each boundary, in particular in relation to Bedfont Road and 
Northumberland Close.  

 
7.30 For the reasons state above, it is considered that the proposal would 

unacceptably harm the character and appearance of the area and would be 
detrimental when viewed from the street scene not paying regards to the 
building pattern and would appear as unduly dominant and conspicuous in 
views from Northumberland Close and Bedfont Road. This conflicts with the 
objectives of Policy EN1 of the CS&P DPD (2009) and the NPPF. 

 
 Impact on neighbouring residential properties 
 
7.31 Policy EN1b of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 (CS & P DPD) 

states that: 

“New development should achieve a satisfactory relationship to adjoining 
properties avoiding significant harmful impact in terms of loss of privacy, 
daylight or sunlight, or overbearing effect due to bulk and proximity or 
outlook.” 

Page 35



 
 
 

7.32 The Council’s Supplementary Planning Document on the Design of 
Residential Extensions and New Residential Development 2011 (SPD) 
provides further details for the policies of the CS & P DPD. Whilst the SPD 
relates to residential development and is not directly relevant to new 
commercial developments, it does provide useful guidance regarding impact 
of new buildings and their relationship with neighbouring dwellings. For 
example, the minimum recommended SPD separation distance for 3-storey 
development is 15 metres (back to boundary) and 30 metres (back to back). 

7.33 One of the reasons the previous scheme (19/00956/FUL) was refused was:  

“The proposed development in terms of its design, scale and location is 
considered to have a harmful overbearing impact on the amenity of 
neighbouring residential properties, contrary to Policy EN1 of the Core 
Strategy and Policies DPD 2009.” 

 
7.34 It was considered that the previous scheme would have an unacceptable 

overbearing impact on the existing residential properties in Clare Road that 
back onto the site. The continuous mass of the 164 metre long western 
elevation of the new building would be visually obtrusive and dominating when 
viewed from these adjacent properties. Moreover, in relation to Cleveland 
Park, the previous proposal was considered to result in an extensive mass of 
building form which would create an overbearing and detrimental impact on 
the occupiers of the neighbouring properties. 

 
7.35 With regard to the current proposal, both of the new buildings will be situated 

further away from the western boundary, and the existing residential 
properties in Clare Road, compared to the refused scheme. The western side 
elevation of Unit 1 will be 15m in height, but set back from the rear boundaries 
of the neighbouring properties by between 23m and 28m. The separation 
distances between the proposed western elevation and the rear 2-storey 
elevation of 200 – 218 Clare Road will vary between 45m – 49m. With regard 
to Unit 2, the proposed western elevation will be 13m in height and set back 
from the rear boundaries of 220 & 222 Clare Road by between 32m - 33m. 
The gap between the proposed western elevation and the rear elevation of the 
neighbouring properties is approximately 51m. It is considered that the 
proposed buildings are set back sufficiently far away from the western 
boundary so as not to have an unacceptable overbearing impact on the 
neighbouring residential properties in Clare Road. 

 
7.36 However, with regard to the proposed service yard and parking area serving 

Units 2 and 3, this is located much closer to the western boundary. At its 
closest point the service yard is only 8.5m away from the rear boundary of 222 
Clare Road. Bearing in mind the yard’s proximity and that the development 
will be operating on a 24-hour basis, it is considered that noise and general 
disturbance associated with this particular element of the scheme will have an 
unacceptably harmful impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties in 
Clare Road. It is considered that the impact of the service yard and parking 
area of Unit 1 will be harmful to neighbouring properties. The issue of noise 
and disturbance is covered in more detail in the Noise section below. 
 

7.37 With regard to Cleveland Park, the proposed northern rear elevation of Unit 1 
will be located next to the southern boundary of the neighbouring residential 

Page 36



 
 
 

development. Unit 1 will be set-in from the boundary by only 2.5m – 4m and 
will be 15m in height. It is acknowledged that the area of Cleveland Park 
located closest to Unit 1 comprises the parking area and access road, with the 
existing houses situated further to the north. However, given the sheer scale 
of the proposed northern elevation and its proximity to the boundary, it is 
considered that the proposal will have an unacceptable overbearing and 
overshadowing impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties and the 
setting of the residential estate. With regard to Units 2 and 3, this building will 
be set-in from the existing western boundary of Cleveland Park by 10.15m – 
12m. A landscape buffer strip will be provided between the rear elevation of 
Units 2 and 3 and the boundary. The proposed height of the rear elevation will 
be 13m. Whilst the proposed set-back distance (and height) and its 
consequent impact on Cleveland Park will be less harmful compared to Unit 1, 
the combined effect of all 3 units on the amenity of Cleveland Park will be 
extremely harmful. Almost the entire southern and western boundaries of the 
residential development will be enclosed by the high, expansive and bulky 
buildings, creating an unacceptable overbearing and overshadowing effect. 
The proposal will therefore fail to comply with the requirements of Policy EN1b 
of the CS & P DPD. 

 
Noise and disturbance  

 
7.38 Policy EN11 of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will seek to minimise 

the adverse impact of noise by requiring developments that generate 
unacceptable noise levels to include measures to reduce noise to an 
acceptable level. 
 

7.39 Whilst the current applicant has stated that the future occupiers of the new 
units is not known at this stage, the development will operate 24 hours a day, 
7 days a week. Consequently, any noise emitting from the units, together with 
associated traffic movements, will occur throughout the night, as well as 
during the day. As mentioned above, the site is adjoined by existing 
residential properties to the west in Clare Road, and to the north-east in 
Cleveland Park. There is also a school located further to the south (Stanwell 
Fields), although this does not directly adjoin the application site. 
 

7.40 It is relevant to note that the previous planning application (19/00956/FUL) 
was refused on noise grounds in relation to neighbouring residential 
properties. The noise and disturbance associated with the use of the service 
yard and parking areas was considered to be unacceptable. This was 
considered to not only emit noise from traffic movements, but also additional 
types of noise such as operatives slamming doors, vehicles reversing alarms, 
and banging noise associated with warehouse work. Although the applicant 
proposed high acoustic fencing to be installed along the boundaries as a 
mitigation measure, this was not considered an acceptable solution and would 
not be sufficient to reduce noise to acceptable levels. 
 

7.41 The current applicant has submitted a noise assessment. The noise 
assessment states that the main issues of noise associated with the operation 
of the development are traffic noise (i.e., vehicle movements and operations 
on-site, in particular HGV movements) and fixed plant noise. It also considers 
the noise impact during the construction phase. The noise assessment 

Page 37



 
 
 

concludes that the proposed predicted receptor operational noise levels are 
considerably lower than existing ambient noise levels (traffic and airport 
noise). The report advises that criteria for good living and resting conditions, 
as defined by BS8233, is predicted to be met at all receptor locations with 
windows closed. Also, acceptable levels of fixed plant noise can be achieved 
on the site and can be controlled through the imposition of planning 
conditions. No noise mitigation measures are considered necessary. 
 

7.42 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer was consulted on the planning 
application and has responded by raising an objection on noise grounds. She 
has recommended that the application is refused for this reason. She 
considers the submitted noise assessment to be inadequate. It lacks sufficient 
information and does not give a true consideration of noise impacts in relation 
to neighbouring properties. For example, the existing noise monitoring in the 
area undertaken to understand the existing background noise levels was 
carried out at only one monitoring point, which is very close to existing 
commercial/industrial units to the east and south of the site, and further away 
from Clare Road. It is not considered this is representative of existing 
background noise levels in Clare Road where it would be expected to be 
lower. In addition to plant noise, other operational noise such as slamming of 
doors, the clattering of shutters and the reversing of vehicle alarms are likely 
to cause disturbance to nearby residents, particularly those in Clare Road. 
Moreover, the BS8233 assessment concludes that although noise limits are 
exceeded with windows open at nearest noise sensitive receptors, windows 
would be closed for the majority of the year. It is not considered that this is a 
reasonable assumption. Residents and the nearby school should be able to 
have windows open without being unreasonably disturbed by noise from the 
development. The Environmental Health Officer also makes a number of other 
concerns regarding the inadequate noise assessment. 
 

7.43 Taking into account the lack of information provided in the submitted noise 
assessment, the comments made by the Environmental Health Officer, and 
the proximity of the site to neighbouring residential properties and the nearby 
school, it is considered that the noise and general disturbance created by the 
proposed development will have a harmful impact on the neighbouring 
properties, contrary to Policy EN11 of the CS & P DPD. 

 
Transportation issues  

 
7.44 Policy CC2 of the CS&P DPD states that the Council will seek to secure more 

sustainable travel patterns by only permitting traffic generating development 
where it is or can be made compatible with the transport infrastructure in the 
area taking into account:  

 
(i) number and nature of additional traffic movements, including servicing 

needs;  
 (ii) capacity of the local transport network;  
(iii) cumulative impact including other proposed development;  
(iv) access and egress to the public highway; and  

   (v) highway safety 
 

Page 38



 
 
 

7.45 Paragraph 111 of the NPPF states that ‘Development should only be 
prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road 
network would be severe.’ 
 

7.46 It is relevant to note that the previous application (19/00956/FUL) for a new 
warehousing and distribution/logistics (B8) building with associated offices 
was partly refused on highway safety and parking grounds. In particular, the 
access from the site onto Northumberland Close was not considered suitable 
to accommodate the volume of HGV’s that the development would generate. 
Moreover, the applicant had failed to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority that the level of car parking proposed was adequate 
to accommodate the demand generated by the proposal, which had the 
potential to result in parking taking place on the adjacent highway.  

 
7.47 With regard to the current scheme, it is proposed that two separate accesses 

will be created. Unit 1 will be accessed from Northumberland Close, via the 
existing access that currently leads to the Thames Water site to the south of 
the application site. Unit 1 will have a parking area comprising 40 car parking 
spaces. There will also be a large goods yards in front of the building. Units 2 
and 3 will be accessed from Bedfont Road in the north-western corner of the 
site. Each unit will have a small car park with 10 spaces. There will also be a 
goods yard located at the front of the buildings. Overall, there will be a total of 
60 car parking spaces provided on the site. There will also be 32 cycle parking 
spaces. 

 
7.48 The County Highway Authority (CHA) was consulted on the planning 

application and has raised an objection on highway safety grounds in relation 
to the proposed access being created onto Bedfont Road. The CHA has made 
the following comments on this issue in their consultation response: 

 
“Bedfont Road (C238) is subject to a 40mph posted speed limit. In 
accordance with Design Manual for Roads and Bridges, the visibility 
requirements for a road such as this are 120 metres in either direction, 
measured from a 2.4 metre setback from the edge of carriageway to the 
nearside edge of the carriageway. 

 
Following a request for demonstration of visibility splays from the new site 
access off Bedfont Road, the Applicant has depicted 2.4 metre x 43 metres 
visibility splays in accordance with Manual for Streets {MfS} guidance for a 
30mph posted speed limit. 

 

The CHA is of the view that the standards that the Applicant has used would 
not be suitable for a road such as Bedfont Road which experiences a high 
proportion of heavy goods vehicle traffic and serves as a feeder road 
primarily for large industrial sites. The guidance set out in Manual for Streets 
is applicable to “lightly-trafficked residential streets” and other streets where 
the street has a significant “place” function, such as high streets. It is widely 
considered that on roads with speeds over 37mph, which the CHA believes 
Bedfont Road regularly experiences based on observation during site visits, 
that MfS is not applicable. However, no data has been provided to 
demonstrate that existing vehicle speeds in the vicinity of the proposed 

Page 39



 
 
 

access are below this, and therefore the application must be assessed on 
the assumption that vehicle travel at the posted 40mph speed limit. 

 
The Applicant has suggested that the 30mph speed limit, which starts to the 
west of the proposed access, could be extended eastwards on Bedfont Road 
to an unspecified point along the site frontage and be accompanied by 
speed calming features. However, details have not been provided as to what 
features might be used or where they would be located. As a result, it is not 
possible to reliably assess whether the proposed access onto Bedfont Road 
would be acceptable under a 30mph speed condition.” 

 
7.49 Therefore, the County Highway Authority has recommended refusal on the 

ground that, if permitted, the proposed development would lead to the 
introduction of a new access to Bedfont Road where it has not been suitably 
demonstrated that there is sufficient visibility for vehicular traffic in both the 
leading and trailing directions. This would have unacceptable impact on 
highway safety contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework 2021 and 
Policy CC2 of Spelthorne Borough Council’s Core Strategy and Policies 
Development Plan Document February 2009.  
 

7.50 In view of this, and given the policy in the NPPF, the application is 
recommended for refusal for this reason.  

 
7.51 In terms of parking provision, Policy CC3 of the CS & P DPD states that the 

Council will require appropriate parking provision to be made for off-street 
parking in development proposals in accordance with its maximum parking 
standards. 
 

7.52 The Spelthorne Council’s Parking Standards date from an original document 
from 2001 and pre-date the first NPPF which was published in 2012. 
However, it is considered that they are still relevant and some weight should 
be given to them in the decision making process. The Surrey County Council 
Parking Guidance is more recent (2021) and is applied Surrey-wide. Given the 
date of the publication and that is consistent with the NPPF 2021, it is 
considered that significant weight should be given to it. 

 
7.53 The applicant is seeking a flexible use for all three units, either Use Class B2 

(Industrial) or B8 (Storage or Distribution). These two Use Classes can 
generate different levels of demand for car parking, with different parking 
standards as a result. Spelthorne Borough Council’s Parking Standards 
recommend for Use Class B2 (Industrial) that 1 car space per 35 sq. m. of 
floor space. With regard to Use Class B8, Spelthorne’s Parking Standards 
stipulate 1 car space per 100 sq. m. Surrey’s Parking standards 
recommended between 1 space per 100 sq. m. (storage only) and 1 space 
per 70 sq. m. (distribution only). The following table sets out the different 
maximum parking standards on the type of flexible use. It also shows the 
proposed shortfalls. 

 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
 
 

 Proposal CHA SBC 

 B2/B8 B2 B8 B2 B8 

Unit 1 40 208 63 – 89 179 63 

Unit 2 10 38 11 – 16 33 12 

Unit 3 10 38 11 – 16 33 12 

Total 60 284 85 – 121 245 87 

Shortfall  224 25 - 61 185 27 

 
7.54 Whilst the above Parking Standards allow for reduced provision of car parking 

where there are good options for sustainable travel, it is considered that the 
options for sustainable travel in this particular location are limited and are 
insufficient to justify such a significant shortfall against these Parking 
Standards. The closest railway station (Heathrow Terminal 4 Underground) is 
over 2 kilometres away. Bus stops on Clare Road provide the only meaningful 
option for sustainable travel to the site. However, the CHA has considered 
estimated journey times from a range of local and regional destinations and it 
appears public transport journeys that require connections are likely to take 
significantly longer than car journeys. As a result, it is most likely employees 
with access to a vehicle would opt to drive to work. The proposed cycle 
parking facilities on the site meet the cycle parking standards for a scheme of 
this size. However, the CHA notes that cycle infrastructure in the vicinity of the 
site is poor and would not encourage employees to cycle to work. 

 
7.55 The impact of a significant shortfall of parking has been assessed by the  

CHA. Parking restrictions are in place on Northumberland Close and Bedfont 
Road, which may discourage parking in locations that could cause a highway 
safety concern. However, there is some unrestricted on-street parking along 
Clare Road and a small part of Northumberland Close which would attract 
overflow parking. In any case, these locations are already well used by others 
for parking, and spaces may not be available. The result of this would be that 
employees and visitors to the site would be likely to opt to park on 
Northumberland Close and Bedfont Road, contrary to the existing parking 
restrictions and prejudicial to the safety and free-flow of traffic on the highway. 
In addition, it is further considered that the lack of sufficient parking space on 
site would encourage employees and visitors to park in Cleveland Park which 
is a car park solely used by the residents. Moreover, employees and visitors 
are likely to park along Clare Road and other nearby roads which would likely 
add to the strong competition for parking spaces. This would create parking 
stress for local residents. The application is therefore unacceptable on parking 
grounds and is recommended for refusal for this reason. 

 

 Flooding 
 
7.56 Policy LO1 of the Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 

(CS&P DPD) seeks to reduce flood risk and its adverse effects on people and 
property.  The NPPF states that Inappropriate development in areas at risk of 
flooding should be avoided by directing development away from areas at 
highest risk.  

Page 41



 
 
 

 

7.57 As already highlighted above, the application site is located within the Flood 
Zone 1 which represents land having a low probability of river flooding with 
less than 1 in 1000 risk (0.1%). The applicant has submitted a Flood Risk 
Assessment which considered other flood risks as low and concluded the 
overall floor risk to be low on this site. The Environment Agency, Thames 
Water and the Lead Local Flood Authority (Surrey County Council) were 
consulted on the proposal and raised no objection, subject to conditions and 
informatives. 

 
7.58 The proposal is therefore considered to have no material impact on flood risk 

and to be compliant with Policy LO1 of the CS&P DPD. 
 

Renewable Energy 
 

7.59 Policy CC1 of the Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 
(CS&P DPD) states that the Council will require residential development of 
one or more dwellings and other development involving new building or 
extensions exceeding 100 sqm to include measures to provide at least 10% of 
the development’s energy demand from on-site renewable energy sources, 
unless it can be shown that it would seriously threaten the viability of the 
development. 
 

7.60 The applicant has submitted an energy report which states that various 
energy measures will be incorporated into the design of the scheme. 
Following the proposed amendments within the revised Energy and 
Sustainability Statement, the proposed energy strategy considers the use of 
Air Source Heat Pumps and Photovoltaic solar panels being utilised, which 
provides 17.57% of the energy demand of the development. The Council’s 
Sustainability Officer was consulted and is satisfied that the renewable energy 
requirement (10%) will be met. This can be secured by a condition. 

 
Ecology 

 
7.61 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021 at paragraph 174 

seeks to ensure that both planning policies and decisions contribute to and 
enhance the natural and local environment. Furthermore, the same 
documents states that “if significant harm to biodiversity resulting from a 
development cannot be avoided (through locating on an alternative site with 
less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated 
for, then planning permission should be refused”. 
 

7.62 Policy EN8 of the Core Strategy and Policies Development Plan Document 
(CS&P DPD) states that the Council will seek to protect and improve the 
landscape and biodiversity of the Borough by ensuring that new development, 
wherever possible, contributes to an improvement in the landscape and 
biodiversity and also avoids harm to features of significance in the landscape 
or of nature conservation interest. It is also important to note the guidance 
regarding protected species in Circular 06/2005. This states that "it is 
essential that the presence or otherwise of protected species and the extent 
that they may be affected by the proposed development, is established before 

Page 42



 
 
 

the planning permission is granted, otherwise all relevant material 
considerations may not have been addressed in making the decision." 
 

7.63 The area of land on which the proposal with the associated hardstanding is to 
be built is currently undeveloped land (free of development) which is 
predominately covered with overgrown grass with trees and shrubs around. 
 

7.64 The proposed development site falls within the Impact Risk Zone (IRZ) for 
Staines Moor SSSI and South West London waterbodies SPA and Ramsar 
sites. The IRZ for this protected site states “Large infrastructure such as 
warehousing / industry where total net additional gross internal floorspace 
following development is 1,000m² or more” may impact on the special interest 
of the protected site(s). Natural England was consulted and raised no 
objection to the proposal.  
 

7.65 Surrey Wildlife Trust (SWT) was consulted to provide a technical review of 
ecological information that has been submitted to ensure that all ecological 
aspects have been appropriately considered prior to determination or 
discharging conditions. After reviewing the supporting information, serious 
concerns were raised over the proposal and in relation to the ecology.  
 

7.66 The SWT noted that the submitted Ecological Appraisal report identifies the 
presence of mammal runs and habitat suitable for badgers within the 
development site. It was however noted that the report does not confirm likely 
absence of active setts due to dense impenetrable vegetation. Disturbance or 
closure of active badger setts without appropriate derogation licensing would 
be contrary to the legislation. The SWT considers that the report is unclear on 
the extent of impacts and whether setts are present, affected, active or 
disused. Impact avoidance, mitigation and compensation measures cannot 
therefore demonstrate that adverse impacts on this protected species will not 
occur. The proposed mitigation is to undertake careful and ecologically 
supervised clearance of vegetation with licensing if badger setts are found. 
However, other methods to establish presence or likely absence of badgers 
(such as a site survey during winter when vegetation may be lower or camera 
trap surveys on mammal runs) do not appear to have been considered. The 
SWT has therefore advised that on the basis of the currently submitted 
information, the LPA does not have sufficient information that demonstrates 
the badger will not be harmed by the proposed development, both through 
direct loss of a potentially active sett and loss of associated foraging areas. 
The LPA does not currently have sufficient information to ensure that the 
development as proposed will not be contrary to the statutory objectives of the 
Badgers Act 1992 and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
 

7.67 In relation to bats, the Surrey Wildlife Trust acknowledged that the proposed 
development appears to affect habitats that provide suitable roosting, foraging 
and commuting habitat for bats. Suitable habitat for bats existing locally and 
bat records indicate local presence. The SWT noted, therefore, a reasonable 
likelihood of bats being present and adversely affected by the proposed 
development. The submitted ecological appraisal states that two crack willows 
have potential bat roosting features and other trees may also support such 
features and ‘the site will need to be re-visited with appropriate equipment to 
access the trees on site’. The submitted Illustrative Masterplan 

Page 43



 
 
 

(DLA.2104.L.07.P03) indicates that construction activity to facilitate the 
proposed development would remove a number of individual trees (including 
the crack willows) and groups of trees. These trees do not appear to have 
been subject to detailed bat roost potential evaluation. The SWT has advised 
that it is therefore not possible to determine whether or not bat roosts could be 
lost or disturbed through the loss or damage to these trees. The Ecological 
Appraisal also notes that the site ‘forms part of a green corridor linking 
habitats to the south with the two rivers north of the site and so may be of 
importance to foraging and commuting bats’ and therefore, further bat activity 
surveys are recommended. The applicant has not submitted these further 
activity surveys and therefore there is insufficient supporting information to 
determine the importance of the site for bats.  
 

7.68 The site is proposed to be operational 24 hours a day and the impact of 
lighting associated with this usage will need to be considered in line with the 
findings of the bat activity survey. The Ecological Appraisal states that ‘A 
specific lighting strategy will be dependent on the results of the further bat 
activity surveys’ which has not be provided at this stage.  
 

7.69 In line with the legislation and planning policy and guidance, the SWT advises 
that the LPA has a duty to consider impacts to bats when assessing 
applications and due to the lack of surveys the LPA does not have sufficient 
information on which to base a decision under Regulation 55(9)(b). The LPA 
cannot be sure that the applicant will be able to maintain the population at 
favourable condition status as the importance of the proposed development 
site for bats is not known and therefore appropriate avoidance, mitigation and 
compensation measures cannot be determined. 
 

7.70 The submitted Ecological Appraisal suggests that the site provides good 
foraging and nesting opportunities for birds within the trees, woodland and 
dense scrub, with the grassland on site providing foraging opportunities for 
common species. The report states that the loss of nesting and foraging 
habitat will be significant. Furthermore, the Bird Hazard Management Plan 
states that the proposed development will be likely to reduce the existing bird 
pollution significantly. The Surrey Wildlife Trust has advised that the submitted 
information is unclear why no further bird surveys are recommended given the 
quality of the habitat and the extent/magnitude of the impact. The 
presence/likely absence of birds, the conservation status of bird species 
present (to include priority species) and the number of bird territories that will 
be lost is currently unknown. 
 

7.71 In regard to biodiversity net gain, the Surrey Wildlife Trust acknowledged that 
the proposed development will result a net loss of biodiversity (A loss of -
12.23 biodiversity units (89.75% loss) and a gain of +1.15 hedgerow units). It 
has been advised that the documentation submitted by the applicant does not 
clearly demonstrate that the proposed development will result in a measurable 
net gain. 
 

7.72 It is relevant to note that the previous planning application was not refused on 
biodiversity grounds as the submitted information at the time was considered 
acceptable as it demonstrated that there were no protected species within the 
site and that no further ecological surveys were required. Surrey Wildlife Trust 

Page 44



 
 
 

was satisfied with the submitted information. However, the ecological surveys 
within the previous application are now more than two years old. Government 
guidance states that “surveys should be up to date and ideally from the most 
recent survey season.” The National Planning Policy Framework (2021) also 
states that “The right information is crucial to good decision making, 
particularly where formal assessments are required.” Therefore, it does not 
constitute up to date information. 
 

7.73 Consequently, the proposal is considered unacceptable on ecological 
grounds, contrary to Policy EN8, Circular 06/2005 and the NPPF. 
 

           Air Quality 
 

7.74 Policy EN3 of the CS & P DPD states that the Council will seek to improve the 
air quality of the Borough and minimise harm from poor air quality by refusing 
development where the adverse effects on air quality are of a significant 
scale, either individually or in combination of other proposals, and which are 
not outweighed by other considerations or effects and cannot be appropriately 
and effectively mitigated.  
 

7.75 The applicant has submitted an Air Quality Assessment (AQA) which has 
been considered by the Council’s Environmental Health Officer. However, she 
rejected this particular AQA because it contains number of errors and 
insufficient information justifying that the proposal would be acceptable on air 
quality grounds.   
 

7.76 The application is for industrial and storage buildings which will be accessed 
by HGVs and vans, the technology for low emission HGVs is not well 
established and for vans there are few long wheelbase models that are 
electric. The AQA acknowledges that HGVs are likely to remain diesel 
powered for the foreseeable future. The Council’s Pollution Control Officer 
raised concerns that no mitigation is recommended in the assessment and 
that the development could worsen the risk of exceedance at sensitive 
receptors. Therefore, Council’s Pollution Control Officer recommends a 
refusal on the grounds of potential air quality impacts. 
 

7.77 It is noted that the Council’s Environmental Health Department removed their 
original objection within the previous planning application (ref. 19/00956/FUL). 
However, the air quality assessments have been carried out over different 
assessment years with different traffic data and by different consultants.  
 

7.78 In a view of inadequate AQA and the comments from the Council’s Pollution 
Control Officer, it is recommended that the planning application is refused on 
air quality grounds. 

 
Lighting  

 
7.79 Policy EN13 seeks minimise the adverse impact of light pollution on the 

environment and ensure that lighting proposals do not adversely affect 
amenity or public safety. 

 

Page 45



 
 
 

7.80 The applicant states that the proposed will operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a 
week. The scheme will involve the installation of external lighting around the 
site in the form of various lamps on columns and lights to be installed on the 
external elevations of the buildings. The service yards and parking areas will 
be lit by lamps on 6 metre or 8 metres high columns. 

 
7.81 The applicant has submitted an External Lighting Assessment, which 

assesses the impact of the proposed external lighting on the surrounding area 
and neighbouring properties. The Assessment concludes that the scheme 
meets the minimum levels for security and working purposes while also 
meeting acceptable requirements in relation to the surrounding area. 

 
7.82 The Council’s Environmental Health Officer was consulted on the submitted 

Assessment.  She has raised an objection due to concerns about the risk of 
light intrusion to nearby residents from the development based on the 
information contained within the Assessment. She has made the following 
comments: 

 

• The Assessment refers to the site being classed as an ‘E3 Environment 
Zone’ (medium district brightness areas, such as industrial or residential 
estates). The criteria referred to in the conclusion of the Assessment 
states that this will be met. However, it seems to be based on the 
permitted levels for an ‘E4 Environmental Zone’ (high district brightness 
areas, such as town centres and commercial areas). 
 

• The Assessment states that the ‘light trespass’ at the site has not been 
calculated. It is therefore not understood how it can be confirmed as being 
below the maximum permitted level of light intrusion for an ‘E3 
Environmental Zone’. 

 

• There is no reference in the report to the curfew time. In the absence of 
this information, it is assumed to mean 23:00hrs. There is a note at the 
bottom of the Assessment Summary Matrix in the report that states an 
assumption that no luminaires will be left on post-curfew. There is no 
information about the proposed operational times of the development and 
given the intended use as industrial and storage buildings, it might be 
unreasonable to assume that there will be no use that will require external 
lighting beyond this curfew time. [Officer note: the applicant has confirmed 
that the development will operate 24 hours a day]. 

 

• The plan submitted with the Assessment indicates that there might be 
some light spill to the residential properties closest to the development in 
Clare Road. 

 

• The loss of the existing green space that serves as a buffer between 
Clare Road and the existing commercial/industrial units to the East and 
South of the proposed development has not been acknowledged in the 
report. It would also mean that Cleveland Park would effectively become 
surrounded by industrial/commercial units on 3 sides and a busy road on 
the 4th, all of which would be sources of light. 
 

Page 46



 
 
 

7.83 Whilst the Council did not refuse the previous planning application 
(19/00956/FUL) on lighting grounds (the Council’s Environmental Health 
Officer did not object to the previous application on lighting grounds), this 
current proposal is different.  Unlike the current application, there was no 
service yard and access provided off Bedfont Road, adjacent to the houses in 
Clare Road. The 
 

7.84 Taking into account the comments from the Environmental Health Officer, it is 
considered that the proposed external lighting will have an unacceptable 
impact on the amenity of the neighbouring residential properties, contrary to 
the requirements of Policy EN13 of the CS & P DPD. This is in addition to the 
harm from the noise and general disturbance created by the development. 

 
Other Considerations 

 
7.85 The applicant has put forward some considerations in their Planning 

Statement in support of their scheme in the Green Belt. The considerations 
are summarised below with a response to the points from the Local Planning 
Authority: -  

 
1. Redevelopment of the site will support local and regional employment 

growth and high levels of floorspace demand in the logistics sector. It will 
contribute towards building a strong, responsive and competitive 
economy. 
 

Response 
  
7.86 It is noted that the proposed development will bring significant economic 

benefits. Although the proposed occupier is not known, the applicant has 
indicated in their Planning Statement that the development will create up to 
228 jobs when it is in operation. It is considered that limited weight should be 
given in favour of this particular consideration. 

 
 

2. The proposed development supports the broader role and function of 
Heathrow Airport (as the UK’s only uses in close proximity in an area with 
incredibly constrained supply. 

 
Response 

  
7.87 It is recognised that this type of development is likely to operate in connection 

with nearby Heathrow Airport, in a similar manner to the adjacent commercial 
uses on the other side of Northumberland Close (i.e. air freight warehousing 
and distribution). However, it is noted that the applicant is seeking permission 
for a flexible use that also includes Use Class B2 (General Industry). This is a 
general statement provided by the applicant. No evidence has been provided 
to demonstrate why a new airport related commercial development of this size 
and layout is required on this particular site. Likewise, no evidence has been 
provided to show the existing capacity constraints at Heathrow, nor has 
information been provided of existing vacancy levels in similar warehouse 
development around the airport. It is considered that limited weight in favour 
of the development should be given to this particular consideration. 

Page 47



 
 
 

 
 

3. The proposal represents the efficient use of an infill site that can be 
developed without harm to Green Belt principles, adjacent to existing 
industrial operations and in a sustainable location, as supported by 
national policy. 

 
Response 

  
7.88 The proposal is not considered to be an efficient use of an infill site. It 

constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt and will cause a very 
substantial loss of openness for the reasons given above. The site adjoins 
existing residential properties to the west in Clare Road and to the north-east 
in Cleveland Park. As mentioned above, the proposal is considered to cause 
unacceptable harm to the amenity of neighbouring residential properties. This 
particular consideration has no weight in favour of the scheme. 

 
 

4. The level of harm to the Green Belt caused by the loss of the site would be 
minimal as it does not serve any of the five Green Belt purposes defined 
by the NPPF. 

 
Response 
 

7.89 It is noted that the site together with the wider Green Belt area in this part of 
Stanwell has been considered to be ‘performing weakly’ in the Council’s 
Green Belt Assessment Stage 1 (2018). The purpose of the Green Belt 
Assessment was to provide evidence of how different areas perform against 
the Green Belt purposes set out in paragraph 138 of the NPPF. This evidence 
was taken into account by the Council alongside other evidence in preparing 
the new Local Plan. Whilst the site is proposed in the emerging Local Plan to 
be taken out of the Green Belt and allocated for housing, at this stage the 
emerging plan has limited weight, the site is designated as Green Belt, and 
the proposal must be assessed on this basis. As mentioned above, the 
proposal constitutes inappropriate development, it will cause a very 
substantial loss of openness, and conflicts with the purposes of the Green Belt 
set out in the NPPF. This consideration has no weight in favour of the 
scheme. 

 
 

5. Spelthorne Borough Council has identified the site as a preferred option 
for Green Belt releases to meet an identified need for commercial 
floorspace which has only increased since the evidence base was 
published. 

 
Response 

 
7.90 The site is not proposed to be allocated for commercial purposes in the 

emerging Local Plan. Rather, it is identified in the Pre-submission Local Plan, 
submitted to the Planning Inspectorate on 25 November 2022,) as a site to be 
allocated for residential (C3): approximately 80 units (Site ID: SNI/005) as 
mentioned above Heathrow Airport expansion plans have been put on hold 

Page 48



 
 
 

and the Council did not consider there was exceptional circumstances to 
allocate this site for commercial purposes. Consequently, this consideration 
has no weight in favour of the proposal. 

 
Equalities Act 2010 
 

7.91 This planning application has been considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 
and associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to 
have due regard to: 
 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 

 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
 

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
7.92 The question in every case is whether the decision maker has in substance 

had due regard to the relevant statutory need, to see whether the duty has 
been performed. 
 

7.93 The Council’s obligation is to have due regard to the need to achieve these 
goals in making its decisions. Due regard means to have such regard as is 
appropriate in all the circumstances. 
 

7.94 The development has been designed so that it is accessible for disabled 
people. There will be 8 no. disabled parking spaces provided on the site and 
these will be located close to the building entrances. The applicant states that 
the main entrance doors will meet all current Building Regulations Part M 
requirements. 

 
7.95 The NPPF defines people with disabilities as individuals that have a physical 

or mental impairment, which has a substantial and long-term adverse effects 
on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. This can include but is 
not limited to, people with ambulatory difficulties, blindness, learning 
difficulties, autism and mental health needs. It is considered that it would be 
possible for individuals with disabilities to access the development.  

 
Human Rights Act 1998 
 

7.96 This planning application has been considered against the provisions of the 
Human Rights Act 1998. 
 

7.97 Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made 
representations) have the right to a fair hearing and to this end full 
consideration will be given to their comments. 

 
7.98 Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and 

family life and a right to the protection of property, i.e. peaceful enjoyment of 

Page 49



 
 
 

one's possessions which could include a person's home, and other land and 
business assets. 

 
7.99 In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Spelthorne Local Plan 

and the NPPF and all material planning considerations, Officers have 
concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon the applicant/ objectors/ 
residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol 
may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law 
and is justified in the public interest.  Any restriction of these rights posed by 
the approval of the application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the 
wider benefits of such a decision, is based upon the merits of the proposal, 
and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council under the 
Town & Country Planning Acts. 

 
 Conclusion 
 
7.100 The development constitutes inappropriate development in the Green Belt and 

this, in itself, weighs heavily against the merits of the scheme. The 
development will result in a very significant reduction in the openness of the 
Green Belt and this adds substantial weight against the proposal. 
Furthermore, the development conflicts with two of the five purposes of Green 
Belts in paragraph 138 of the NPPF, which adds substantial weight against 
the merits of the scheme. The development will cause additional harm to the 
character and appearance of the area, highway safety, overbearing impact on 
neighbouring properties, unacceptable noise and disturbance, light pollution, 
loss of biodiversity, and harm to air quality. It is considered that the 
considerations put forward by the applicant in favour of the proposal have 
limited or no weight (individually or cumulatively) and they do not clearly 
outweigh the substantial harm the proposal will cause to the Green Belt, the 
character of the area, neighbouring residential properties, highway safety, 
biodiversity and air quality. Consequently, it is not considered that very special 
circumstances exist. 

 
7.101 Accordingly, the application recommended for refusal. 
 

 
8.  Recommendation 

 

8.1 REFUSE for the following reasons: 
 

1. The development represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt 
for which no very special circumstances have been demonstrated. It will 
result in the site having an urban character, will diminish the openness of 
the Green Belt and conflict with the purposes of including land within it. In 
particular, it would not comply with the Green Belt purposes: to check the 
unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas and to assist in safeguarding the 
countryside from encroachment. It is therefore contrary to Saved Policy 
GB1 of the Spelthorne Borough Local Plan 2001 and Section 13 
(Protecting Green Belt Land) of the National Planning Policy Framework 
2021. 
 

Page 50



 
 
 

2. The proposed development, in terms of its design, scale and location, is 
considered not to respect the character of this semi-rural area, will be 
visually obtrusive and fails to make a positive contribution to the street 
scene. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy EN1 of the Core 
Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 and the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021. 
 

3. The proposed development, in terms of its design, scale and location is 
considered to have an unacceptable overbearing and overshadowing 
impact on the amenity of the neighbouring properties in Cleveland Park, 
contrary to Policy EN1 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009. 

 
4. The noise, general disturbance and light pollution associated with the 

proposed development is considered to have an unacceptable impact on 
the amenity of neighbouring properties, contrary to Policies EN11 and 
EN13 of the Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2021. 

 
5. If permitted, the proposed development would lead to the introduction of a 

new access to Bedfont Road where it has not been suitably demonstrated 
that there is sufficient visibility for vehicular traffic in both the leading and 
trailing directions, which would have an unacceptable impact on highway 
safety contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework 2021 and Policy 
CC2 of Spelthorne Borough Council’s Core Strategy and Policies 
Development Plan Document February 2009. 

 
6. It has not been demonstrated that the proposed level of parking provision 

is adequate to accommodate the demand generated by the proposal. This 
has the potential to result in parking taking place on the highway in the 
vicinity of the development that would have an unacceptable impact on 
highway safety. In addition, the proposal would result in an unacceptable 
impact on parking stress in residential roads within the locality, which 
would be detrimental to the amenity of residential properties. Therefore, 
the proposal contrary to the objectives of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2021, and Policies CC2 and CC3 of Spelthorne Borough 
Council’s Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009. 

 
7. An inadequate ecological survey has been submitted with the application 

and it is not therefore possible to ascertain the current impact of the 
proposal on protected species. Furthermore, the applicant has failed to 
demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority that the 
proposal will achieve a net gain in biodiversity on the site. The proposal is 
therefore contrary to Circular 06/2005, Policy EN8 of the Council's Core 
Strategy and Policies DPD 2009, and Section 15 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework 2021. 

 
8. The applicant has failed to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Local 

Planning Authority that the proposed development will not have a harmful 
impact on air quality in the area. The proposal could therefore potentially 
cause harm to the health of nearby residents, contrary to Policy EN3 of the 
Core Strategy and Policies DPD 2009. 

 

Page 51



 
 
 

 
Informative 
In assessing this application, officers have worked in accordance with the 
requirements of the NPPF.  This includes the following: 
 
a. Made available pre application advice to seek to resolve problems before the 
application was submitted and to foster the delivery of sustainable development 
 
b. Provided feedback through the validation process including information on the 
website, to correct identified problems to ensure that the application was correct and 
could be registered 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 52



 
 
 

 

Major Applications 
This report is for information only 
 
The list below comprises current major applications which may be brought before Planning Committee for determination.  These 
applications have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for consideration or are recently received 
applications that are not ready to be considered by the Planning Committee.  The background papers for all the applications are 
contained on the Council’s website (Part 1 Planning Register). 
 
All planning applications by Spelthorne Borough Council and Knowle Green Estates will be brought before the Planning Committee 
for determination, regardless of the Planning Officer’s recommendation.  Other planning applications may be determined under 
officers’ delegated powers. 
 
If you wish to discuss any of these applications, please contact the case officer(s) in the first instance. 
 

App no Site Proposal 
 

Applicant Case 
Officer(s) 

20/00344/FUL Thameside 
House 
South Street 
Staines-upon-
Thames 
TW18 4PR  

Demolition of existing office block and erection of 
140 residential units in two buildings, with flexible 
commercial and retail space, associated 
landscaping, parking, and ancillary facilities.  

Spelthorne 
Borough Council 

Russ Mounty 

21/00947/FUL Cadline House, 
Drake Avenue 

Demolition of existing building and construction of 
new build 2.5 storey residential building comprising 
of 14 flats and 15 under-croft car spaces. 

Cadline Ltd Matthew 
Clapham 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 5



App no Site Proposal 
 

Applicant Case 
Officer(s) 

22/00591/FUL Renshaw Estate Demolition and redevelopment to provide 2 new 
buildings (5-11 storeys) comprising build-to-rent 
residential apartments (Use Class C3) 
including affordable housing, alongside ancillary 
residential areas (flexible gym, activity space, 
concierge, and residents lounge) and 
landscaping, public realm, children's play area, bin 
storage, plant areas and car and cycle parking. 

Mill Mead Nom 1 
and Mill Mead 
Nom 2 

Russ Mounty 
(Approved 
subject to 
completion of 
S106 
Agreement)  

22/00744/FUL Land At 
Northumberland 
Close Bedfont 
Road Stanwell 
TW19 7LN 

Erection of two industrial and storage buildings 
(flexible Use Class B2/B8) and associated site 
infrastructure, including landscaping, parking, and 
a new access from Bedfont Road. 

Quod (agent) Paul Tomson / 
Vanya Popova 

22/00891/RVC Builders 
Merchant 
Moor Lane 
Staines-upon-
Thames 
TW18 4YN 

Variation of condition 2 (plans condition) of 
planning application 18/01000/FUL to allow 
tandem garage to be reduced to single space and 
creation of increased habitable space at ground 
floor within plots 28-32 and 34-36, Ground floor 
extension to plots 28-32 and 34-36, Ridge height 
increase of 300mm to plots 28-33, and 34-36 
creation of 6 new car parking spaces, amendment 
to condition 8 (vehicle access) and condition 12 
(refuse strategy) to reflect the altered site layout. 

Jewson Builders 
Merchant 

Susanna 
Angell 
 

P
age 54



App no Site Proposal 
 

Applicant Case 
Officer(s) 

22/01229/RVC 1A Priory 
Stables, 
Chertsey Road, 
Shepperton 
TW17 9NU 

Application to remove Condition 14 (Removal of 
Permitted Development rights) of planning 
permission 17/00158/FUL for the erection of 
stables (4 no.) with tack room, access and 
associated roadway and turning head. 

Mr Ned Cash Paul Tomson 

22/01129/FUL 42 Cedar 
House, 
Spelthorne 
Grove, Sunbury-
on-Thames 
TW16 7DD 

Removal of pram sheds and replacement with 
enlarged bin store to meet waste requirements for 
36 bins 

A2Dominion Group Matthew 
Churchill 

22/01584/RVC 

Works Langley 
Road Staines-
upon-Thames 
TW18 2EJ 

Variation of condition 2 (plan numbers) of planning 
application reference 21/00912/FUL for the 
demolition of existing works building and erection 
of 22 dwellings (14 dwelling houses and 8 
apartments) including access, parking, landscaping 
and replacement substation 
to substitute amended plans involving the 
reconfiguration of ground floor layout to allow 
additional accommodation within Plot 20, 
reconfigure parking layout, relocating the visitor 
parking space, relocation of cycle store and  
rationalisation of the internal refuse store. 

 
Shanley Homes 

 
Kelly Walker 

Esmé Spinks 
Planning Development Manager 
30/11/2022 

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Planning application 22/00744/FUL - Land At Northumberland Close Bedfont Road, Stanwell
	Item A Appendices 1 to 3  22 00744 FUL
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	Item A Report 22 00744 FUL

	5 Major Planning Applications

